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Nanometer IC technology dellvers very hlgh functional
integration with very low power consumption and unit
cost, feeding the demand for high-tech consumer
electronics. It also requires more stringent design
verification and simulation so IC design teams can avoid
expensive design iteration and re-design.

Ansoft products address dependencies of circuit
performance to underlying physical processes, increased
coupling between analog and digital IC blocks, and

the contribution of on-chip passives. Ansoft Ieverages
electromagnetic analysis and high-capacity circuit
simulation to deliver accurate extraction of parasitics
seamlessly coupled into large-scale circuit simulation,
ensuring accuracy and enabling “first-pass”

design success.
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Multi-gigabit data transfer depends on optimum channel

performance from GHz-speed serial busses. Ensuring

si?nal fidelity at GHz speeds requires a new generation

of design strategies and tools to accurately characterize

signal transmission.

Ansoft software allows engineers to extract signal path
models, simulate, and validate the signal and power
integrity of complex high-performance electronics.
Combining advanced electromagnetic-field simulators
with powerful circuit and system simulation allows
design teams to evaluate how their high-speed electronic
products will perform long before building

hardware prototypes.
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RIGH-PERFOBMANCE RF
High-performance radio frequency (RF) and microwave
circuits found in communication, wireless, and
military/defense hardware must meet market demands
for lower cost, size, weight, and battery consumption.
Component and system developers are addressing these
requirements with high-density solutions such as system-
in-package. These design strategies that incorporate

" diverse technologies into miniaturized, high-performance_

RF-modules do so at thecost of increased design
complexity, increased package parasitics, andpossnble
“chip-to-chip mteractlons 7 ST

Ansoft” targets these challenges with full-system
verification, multi-chip simulation, and package
interconnect parasitic extraction, ensuring successful
development of next-generation microwave/RF designs.
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HIGE-PERFORNMANGE
ELECTREONMECHANICAL SYSTENME
Today's high-performance electromechanical systems
enable the aerospace, automotive, and power industries
to develop lighter, safer, and more fue!l-efficient products.
To meet these challenges, engineers must address the
electronic and mechanical interdependencies inherent in
these systems.

— Ansoft's powerful multi-domain technology allows

development teams to simulate the interactions between
electromechanical components, electronic circuits, and -
control logic with unprecedented accuracy. By addressmg
the interoperability of components and circuits within a
“system perspective, Ansoft customers understand the
underlyrn% physics and accurately predict design perfor-
~mance-right the first time.




ANSOFT CORPORATION

SIMULATION SOFTWARE FOR HIGH-PERFORMANCE
ELECTRONIC DESIGN

Ansoft is a leading provider of circuit, system, and
component-level electromagnetic (EM) simulation software
for high-performance electronic design. Our products help
engineers model, simulate, and validate complex high-
performance electronics found in computer,
communication, semiconductor, military, aerospace,
automotive, and consumer electronics applications.

TO CUR STOCKHOLDERS
High Performance - It's what Ansoft is about.

With an earnings increase of 130% compared to fiscal
2004, Ansoft had another high-performance year. As
electronic products decrease in size, cost, weight, and
battery consumption, and increase in functionality, the
need for Ansoft technology continues to grow. Today, the
Ansoft portfolio contains a mix of products that are either
the established market leader or in the early stages of
setting new standards for design-tool capability.
Accordingly, we anticipate increasing revenue and
profitability into the future.

To achieve these goals, we will continue to expand our
presence in the simulation and design of high-performance
electronics. For example, in the semiconductor sector,
HFSS™ and Nexxim®, our high-capacity circuit-simulation
tool, are d%namically coupled within Ansoft Designer®

to create the industry’s first “electromagnetics-inside,”
complete simulation-based, high-performance IC design
flow. Furthermore, we anticipate that both advancements
in design automation and design-flow integration will
deliver greater accessibility to all Ansoft technology and
will expand our presence in our current markets while
opening up new opportunities.

Ansoft's high-performance team of research and
development, global customer support and global sales
force, combined with our strate?ic partnerships with
leading technology vendors, will ensure high-performance
growth for years to come.

NICHOLAS CSENDES ZOLTAN J. CENDES, PH.D.
PRESIDENT AND CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND CHIEF TECHNOLOGY OFFICER
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Form 10-K. &

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is an accelerated filer (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). Yes
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As of October 31, 2004, the aggregate market value of voting common stock held by non-affiliates of the registrant, based
upon the last reported sale price for the registrant’s common stock on the NASDAQ National Market on such date, as
reported in The Wall Street Journal, was $124,201,249.
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PART 1

From time to time Ansoft Corporation (“Ansoft” or the “Company”) has made and may continue to make
written or oral “forward-looking statements” including those in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. These
forward-looking statements represent the Company’s present expectations or beliefs concerning future events.
The Company cautions that such statements are qualified by important factors that could cause actual results to
differ materially from those in the forward-looking statements including those factors identified in “Risk
Factors” under “Item 1. Business.” The following discussion and analysis also should be read in conjunction
with “Item 6. Selected Consolidated Financial Data” and our Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes
thereto included elsewhere in this report. Results actually achieved may differ materially from expected results
included in these statements.

ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Overview

Ansoft is a leading developer of high-performance electronic design automation (“EDA”) software. Ansoft
products are used by electrical engineers worldwide to design of state-of-the-art technology products, such as
cellular phones, internet networking, satellite communications systems, integrated circuits and circuit boards,
and electronic sensors and motors. Engineers use our software to maximize product performance, eliminate
physical prototypes, and to reduce time-to-market.

Industry Background

Engineers use EDA software to automate manual, time-consuming and error-prone design processes, resulting
in dramatic increases in productivity and efficiency. EDA software can be used in each of the three phases of
the electronic design process: Logic Design and Synthesis, which provides an outline of the system’s overall
architecture; Functional Design and Analysis, which encompasses the specification of desired functionality,
functional design, simulation and analysis; and Physical Design and Verification, which involves the creation of
physical layout (i.e., placement and routing) and verification that the design meets required specifications.

Modern electronic and communication systems operate at GHz frequencies and transmit/receive data at Gb/s
speeds. As the operating performance gets ever higher, component level details for the passive interconnects as
well as transistor level detail for the active circuits must be modeled accurately. Furthermore, the integration of
ever greater functionality on a single chip, system-on-chip, or system-in-package combined with continuing
miniaturization leads to dramatic increases in the complexity of electronic components and circuits. This dual
requirement of greater accuracy/detail and greater complexity/problem-size drives the demand for a new class
of EDA tools to simulate the real life behavior of high-performance electronic and communication devices.

While traditional EDA tools have become more sophisticated, the process for designing and manufacturing
wireless and electronic components and systems is often iterative, time-consuming and inaccurate. Designs are
generated, devices and systems are developed, prototypes are built, performance is measured and assessed and
designs are then refined to meet the original performance specifications. This entire process is typically repeated
a number of times, lengthening the design process, increasing costs and resulting in lost market opportunities.

The Ansoft Solution

We offer electromagnetic and circuit simulation technologies that meet the dual demands of accuracy/detail and
complexity/size. Ansoft simulation technologies are based on fundamental research breakthroughs in modeling
electromagnetic and circuit details at very high operating device performance and are especially tailored to meet
the exacting demands of Gigahertz and Gigabit designs. Customers use our products to define the architecture




of their device, create specifications for functional blocks, design the circuits and components, evaluate
component level interactions, and optimize circuit or system performance under actual operating conditions.
Ansoft’s software products may be used as an independent design platform or integrated with complementary
EDA tools within a customer’s existing design environment.

Ansoft Strategy

Ansoft’s objective is to become the leading worldwide supplier of high performance EDA software. Using our
proprietary electromagnetic and circuit simulation technologies as a primary competitive advantage, we pursue
our objective through the following strategies: leveraging our technology leadership to solve emerging design
challenges at the cutting-edge of device performance; capitalizing on the growing need for simulation
technologies to provide GHz/Gigabit accurate analysis and validation of high-performance electronics; and
expanding our broad range of product applications to address emerging customer design requirements.

Products

Ansoft provides several products that address our customers’ component and system level design needs.
Customers encounter different combinations of challenges in their designs and often purchase multiple
products. The products are listed below and organized by their market application.

Ansoft High Performance Electronics Software

HFSS8™ is Ansoft’s flagship 3D electromagnetic field simulation software for high frequency, radio
frequency (RF) and wireless design. Ansoft HFSS™ brings the power of the finite element method (FEM)
to the engineer’s desktop by leveraging advanced techniques such as automatic adaptive mesh generation
and refinement, automatically computes multiple adaptive solutions until a user-defined convergence
criterion is met.

Nexxim® is Ansoft’s advanced circuit simulator that addresses the increasingly complex, nonlinear and full-
wave circuit behavior of RECMOS, GaAs/SiGe RF ICs, Gigabit communication backplane design.
Nexxim® guarantees consistency of results across time and frequency domains by using the same circuit
netlist and library models for transient and harmonic balance analyses.

SIwave™ provides advanced analysis of printed circuit boards (PCBs), components, and packages,
SIwave™ generates both frequency- and time-domain results, allowing engineers to model not only
individual components, but also entire PCBs and package structures.

Q3D Extractor™ is a physics-based EDA tool for the electromagnetic-field simulation of two-dimensional
(2D) and arbitrary three-dimensional (3D) structures. Q3D Extractor™ provides engineers with RLGC
parameters and SPICE models which are used extensively to analyze high-speed electronic designs.

Ansoft Designer® provides a design environment to dynamically link electromagnetic analysis with circuit
and system-level simulation. The key to this integration is a unique capability called Solver-on-Demand™
that orchestrates the use of multiple solvers — while still giving the users complete control. Users can
perform System/Circuit/EM co-simulation in Ansoft Designer and optimize product performance under
actual operating conditions.

Turbo Package Analyzer™ (TPA) is a software tool that automates the analysis of all complex
semiconductor packages. TPA can analyze flip-chip, chip-scale package, and multiple-die system-in-
package designs common in the networking and broadband communications markets.




AnsoftLinks™ provides bidirectional links for streamlining data import/export between Ansoft’s products
and popular electronic design automation (EDA) packages from companies such as Cadence®, Synopsys®,
Zuken®, and Mentor®. MCAD links include IGES and STEP formats common to ProEngineer, Catia and
Unigraphics.

Full-Wave Spice™ provides high-bandwidth SPICE models at the touch of a button. This capability enables
engineers to design electronic and communication components while taking Gigahertz-frequency effects
into account.

Optimetrics™ is a smart parametric analysis and optimization module that allows users to perform
parametric analysis, optimization, sensitivity analysis, and other design studies from an easy to use interface.

Ansoft’ s Electromechanical (EM) Software

Maxwell 3D® and 2D are comprehensive, easy-to-use software tools for design problems requiring an
accurate, two-dimensional or three-dimensional representation of the electric or magnetic field behavior.
Maxwell includes AC/DC magnetic, electrostatic, and transient electromagnetic fields; thermal analysis;
parametric modeling; and optimization. Additionally, Maxwell® produces highly accurate equivalent
circuits for inclusion within Ansoft’s SIMPLORER™ and other circuit tools.

SIMPLORER™ is a multi domain simulation package for the design of compléx power electronic and drive
systems. SIMPLORER™ is based on a unique simulator coupling technology and supports fast and easy
model generation using three modeling languages — electrical circuits, block diagrams and state machines.
Simulation results may be displayed with oscilloscopes or digital displays using Active Elements
Technology.

RMxpri™ helps electric-machine manufacturers capitalize on this growing opportunity by allowing
designers to make sizing decisions and to estimate performance during the initial stage of the design
process. RMxprt™ is an ideal tool for calculating critical design parameters, such as torque vs. speed, power
loss, flux in the air gap, and efficiency.

AnsoftLinks™ provides bidirectional links for streamlining data import/export between Ansoft’s products
and popular MCAD formats include IGES and STEP which common to ProEngineer, Catia and
Unigraphics.

Optimetrics™ is a smart parametric analysis and optimization module that allows users to perform
parametric analysis, optimization, sensitivity analysis, and other design studies from an easy to use interface.

Research and Development

Ansoft has a team of research engineers focused on the mathematical and physical underpinnings of the
Company’s simulation algorithms. Dr. Zoltan Cendes, a founder of the Company, serves as the technical leader
of the group. By virtue of over 20 years of research and development by Dr. Cendes prior to the Company’s
inception in 1984, and by its internal research and development staff thereafter, Ansoft has pioneered the
following technologies: automatic and adaptive convergence to solutions, asymptotic waveform evaluation for
spectral domain solutions, transfinite elements, edge elements and tangential vector finite elements and fast
multipole acceleration algorithms.

We continually seek to design and develop new technologies, products and interfaces based on our core
electromagnetic expertise. This effort includes releasing improved versions of our products on a regular basis as
well as developing new products. Ansoft assigns an interdisciplinary team of personnel from research and
development, software development, documentation, quality assurance, customer support and marketing to each




product development project. Ansoft develops cooperative relationships with major customers with respect to
beta-testing its new products or enhancements and implementing suggestions for new product features. The
Company also maintains cooperative relationships with the major hardware vendors on which the Company’s
products operate.

As of April 30, 2005, Ansoft’s research and development group consisted of 109 employees. During fiscal
2005, 2004 and 2003, total research and development expenses were $16.9 million, $15.7 million and $18.6
million, respectively.

In July 2000, Ansoft announced its formation of Altra Broadband to pursue the development of intellectual
property and products for broadband wireless and optical communications. In spite of certain technical
successes, profitable deployment of intellectual property developed by Altra Broadband’s Irvine Technology
Center in this telecom environment was deemed unlikely in the near term. As such, the Company closed the
Irvine Technology Center during fiscal 2003, resulting in a restructuring charge of $532,000 that is included in
“Research and development expense.”

Sales and Marketing

Ansoft markets and sells its products worldwide through its direct sales force. The Company hires application
engineers with significant industry experience who can analyze the needs of its customers and gain technical
insight into the development of future products and enhancements to existing products. The Company’s
application engineers work with the direct sales force to provide on-site support during critical stages of the
user’s benchmark, evaluation and implementation processes. The Company generates sales leads through
customer referrals, advertising in trade publications and on the internet. In addition, the Company participates in
industry trade shows and organizes seminars to promote and expand the adoption of its products.

In North America, the Company maintains sales and support offices in Arizona, California, Florida, Illinois,
Ottawa, Massachusetts, Michigan, New Jersey, Texas, Wisconsin, and Pennsylvania. In Asia-Pacific, the
Company maintains sales and support offices in Japan, Korea, Singapore, Taiwan, and China. In Europe, the
Company maintains sales and support offices in England, Germany, France, Italy and Denmark. As of April 30,
2005, the Company had a direct sales force of 42 representatives, supported by 110 employees in application
engineering, marketing and sales administration.

Customers

The Company has significant breadth in its installed base with over 1,000 customers in the communications,
semiconductor, automotive/industrial, computer, consumer electronics and defense/aerospace industries. No
single customer in the Company’s installed base accounted for more than 10% of total revenue within any of the
past three fiscal years, and the loss of any one customer or small group of customers would not have a material
adverse effect on the Company.

Customer Service and Support

Ansoft offers customers annual maintenance contracts that may generally be purchased for 15% of the list price
of the respective software product. Customer support services include on-line and telephone support for design
engineers and on-site and in-house training on all products. Customers with maintenance agreements receive
product enhancement releases, typically identified by a subsequent whole number version of the same product
name (e.g., HFSS™ V9). Product upgrades that add significant new functionality are typically separately
identified as an add-on module and have a stand-alone list price (e.g., Optimetrics) and are not covered by the
annual maintenance agreement.




We offer a variety of training programs for customers ranging from introductory level courses to advanced
training for an additional fee.

Competition

The electronic design automation software market in which Ansoft competes is intensely competitive and
subject to rapid change. Within our high performance electronics software products, Ansoft competes directly
with certain software offerings from Agilent Corporation, in-house analysis tools or test and measurement
methodologies and certain smaller privately-held companies. Our electromechanical software products face
competition from certain product offerings from Synopsys, Mentor Graphics, Ansys, and certain smaller
privately-held companies. In addition, the EDA industry has become increasingly concentrated in recent years
as a result of acquisitions, and further concentration within the EDA industry could result in increased
competition for Ansoft. Increased competition could result in price reductions, reduced margins or loss of
market share, any of which could seriously harm Ansoft’s business, operating results or financial condition.
Ansoft may be unable to compete successfully against current and future competitors, and competitive pressures
faced by Ansoft could seriously harm Ansoft’s business, operating results and financial condition.

We believe that the principal competitive factors in our market include:

¢ High performance (problem complexity) and accuracy;

s  Short run time;

o Ease of use;

¢  Depth and breadth of product features;

e High quality user support;

¢ Interoperability; and

e  Price.
Proprietary Rights
Ansoft is heavily dependent on its proprietary software technology. The Company relies on a combination of
non-competition and confidentiality agreements with its employees, license agreements, copyrights, trademarks
and trade secret laws to establish and protect proprietary rights to its technology. Ansoft does not hold any
patents. All Ansoft software is shipped with a security lock which limits software access to authorized users. In
addition, the Company does not license or release its source code. Effective copyright and trade secret
protection of the Company’s proprietary technology may be unavailable or limited in certain foreign countries.
Seasonal Effects
Traditionally, sales in the first quarter will decrease from the fourth quarter of the prior fiscal year.
Traditionally, revenues will sequentially increase over the next three quarters of the fiscal year. The fourth
quarter is typically the highest revenue quarter for the fiscal year.

Employees

As of April 30, 2005, Ansoft had a total of 287 employees, including 109 in research and development, 152 in
sales, marketing, and customer support services and 26 in administration. None of the Company’s employees is




represented by a collective bargaining agreement, nor has the Company experienced any work stoppage. The
Company considers its relations with its employees to be good. Many of the company’s employees are highly
skilled, and there is no assurance that the Company will be able to attract and retain sufficient technical
personnel in the future.

Other Information

Ansoft maintains investor relations pages on its internet website at http://www.ansoft.com. On these pages,
Ansoft makes available its annual, quarterly and other current reports filed or furnished with the SEC as soon as
practicable. These reports may be reviewed or downloaded free of charge. Alternatively, if you would like a
paper copy of any such SEC report (without exhibits) or document, write to John Arnold, Ansoft Corporation,
225 West Station Square Drive, Suite 200, Pittsburgh, PA 15219, and a copy of such requested document will
be provided to you, free of charge.

Risk Factors
Our Future Operating Results Are Uncertain.

Ansoft has incurred net losses in two of the past five fiscal years. There can be no assurance that Ansoft’s
revenue and net income will grow or be sustained in future periods or that Ansoft will be profitable in any
future period. Future operating results will depend on many factors, including the degree and the rate of growth
of the markets in which Ansoft competes and the accompanying demand for Ansoft’s products, the level of
product and price competition, the ability of Ansoft to develop and market new products and to control costs,
the ability of Ansoft to expand its direct sales force and the ability of Ansoft to attract and retain key personnel.

Our Quarterly Operating Results Are Difficult To Predict.

We are unable to accurately forecast our future revenues primarily because of the emerging nature of the market
in which we compete. Our revenues and operating results generally depend on the size, timing and structure of
licenses. These factors have historically been, and are likely to continue to be, difficult to forecast. In addition,
our current and future expense levels are based largely on our operating plans and estimates of future revenues
and are, to an extent, fixed. We may be unable to adjust spending sufficiently or quickly enough to compensate
for any unexpected revenue shortfall. Accordingly, any significant shortfall in revenues in relation to our
planned expenditures would seriously harm our business, financial condition and results of operations. Such
shortfalls in our revenue or operating results from levels expected by public market analysts and investors could
seriously harm the trading price of our common stock. Additionally, we may not learn of such revenue
shortfalls, earnings shortfalls or other failure to meet market expectations until late in a fiscal quarter, which
could result in an even more immediate and serious harm to the trading price of our common stock.

Our quarterly operating results have varied, and it is anticipated that our quarterly operating results will vary,
substantially from period to period depending on various factors, many of which are outside our control. Due to
the foregoing factors, we cannot predict with any significant degree of certainty our quarterly revenue and
operating results. Further, we believe that period-to-period comparisons of our operating results are not
necessarily a meaningful indication of future performance.



Our Stock Price Is Extremely Volatile.

The trading price of our common stock has fluctuated significantly in the past, and the trading price of our
common stock is likely to be highly volatile and could be subject to wide fluctuations in price in response to
such factors as:

s Actual or anticipated fluctuations in our operating results;

e Announcements of technological innovations and new products by us or our competitors;
e New contractual relationships with strategic partners by us or our competitors;

e Proposed acquisitions by us or our competitors; and

o Financial results that fail to meet public market analyst expectations of performance.

In addition, the stock market in general, the NASDAQ National Market and the market for technology
companies in particular has experienced extreme price and volume fluctuations that have often been unrelated
or disproportionate to the operating performance of such companies. These broad market and industry factors
may seriously harm the market price of our common stock in future periods.

Businesses Or Assets We Acquire May Not Perform As Projected.

We have acquired a number of technologies, assets and companies in recent years, including the Agilent
Technologies” HFSS™ product line within the past five years. As part of our efforts to increase revenue and
expand our product and services offerings we may acquire additional companies in the future. In addition to
direct costs, acquisitions pose a number of risks, including potential dilution of earnings per share, delays and
other problems of integrating the acquired products and employees into our business, the failure to realize
expected synergies or cost savings, the failure of acquired products to achieve projected sales, the drain on
management time for acquisition-related activities, possible adverse effects on customer buying patterns due to
uncertainties resulting from an acquisition, and assumption of unknown liabilities. The foregoing factors could
seriously harm our business, financial condition and results of operations.

We May Lose Competitive Advantages If Our Proprietary Rights Are Inadequately Protected.

Ansoft’s success depends, in part, upon its proprietary technology. We rely on a combination of trade secrets,
copyrights, trademarks and contractual commitments to protect our proprietary rights in our software products.
We generally enter into confidentiality or license agreements with our employees, distributors and customers,
and limit access to and distribution of our software, documentation and other proprietary information. Despite
these precautions, a third party may still copy or otherwise obtain and use our products or technology without
authorization, or develop similar technology independently. In addition, effective patent, copyright and trade
secret protection may be unavailable or limited in certain foreign countries. It is possible that we may fail to
adequately protect our proprietary rights. This would seriously harm Ansoft’s business, operating results and
financial condition.

We May Be Unable To Attract And Retain The Key Management And Technical Personnel That We Need To
Succeed.

Ansoft’s future operating results depend in large part upon the continued services of its key technical and
management personnel. Ansoft does not have employment contracts with any executive officer. Ansoft’s future
success will also depend in large part on its ability to continue to attract and retain highly skilled technical,
marketing and management personnel. The competition for such personnel, as well as for qualified EDA




engineers, is intense. If Ansoft is unable to attract, hire and retain qualified personnel in the future, the
development of new products and the management of Ansoft’s increasingly complex business would be
impaired. This could seriously harm Ansoft’s business, operating results and financial condition.

We Depend On International Sales for a Significant Percentage Of Our Revenue.

International revenue, principally from Asian customers, accounted for approximately 57% of our total revenue
in the years ended April 30, 2005 and 2004. We expect that international license and service revenue will
continue to account for a significant portion of our total revenue for the foreseeable future. Qur international
business activities are subject to a variety of potential risks, including:

e The impact of recessionary environments in foreign economies;

e Longer receivables collection periods and greater difficulty in accounts receivable collection;
e Difficulties in staffing and managing‘ foreign operations;

e Political and economic instability;

e Unexpected changes in regulatory requirements;

e Reduced protection of intellectual property rights in some countries; and

¢  Tariffs and other trade barriers.

Currency exchange fluctuations in countries in which we license our products could also seriously harm our
business, financial condition and results of operations. In addition, the laws of certain countries do not protect
our products and intellectual property rights to the same extent, as do the laws of the United States. Moreover, it
is possible that we may fail to sustain or increase revenue derived from international licensing and service or
that the foregoing factors will seriously harm our futare international license and service revenue, and,
consequently, seriously harm our business, financial condition and results of operations.

We Need To Successfully Manage Our Expanding Operations.

Revenues have grown from $8.7 million in fiscal 1996 to $67.7 million in fiscal year 2005, and the number of
employees has grown from 69 in April 1996 to 287 as of April 30, 2005. Ansoft’s ability to manage growth
effectively will require it to continue to improve its operational and financial systems, hire and train new
employees and add additional space, both domestically and internationally. Ansoft may not be successful in
addressing such risks, and the failure to do so would seriously harm Ansoft’s business, financial condition and
results of operations.

We Depend On The Growth Of The Communications, Semiconductor And Electronics Industries.

Ansoft is dependent upon the communications and semiconductor industry and, more generally, the electronics
industry. These industries are characterized by rapid technological change, short product life cycles, fluctuations
in manufacturing capacity and pricing and gross margin pressures. Segments of these industries have from time
to time experienced significant economic downturns characterized by decreased product demand, production
over-capacity, price erosion, work slowdowns and layoffs. Any significant downturn could be especially severe
on Ansoft. During such downturns, the number of new integrated circuit design projects often decreases.
Because acquisitions of new licenses from Ansoft are largely dependent upon the commencement of new design
projects, any slowdown in these industries could seriously harm Ansoft’s business, financial condition and
results of operations.
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We Are Controlled By Our Principal Stockholders And Management Which May Limit Your Ability To
Influence Stockholder Matters.

Our executive officers, directors who are also principal stockholders own approximately 28% of the outstanding
shares of Ansoft common stock. As a result, they have the ability to effectively control us and direct our affairs,
including the election of directors and approval of significant corporate transactions. This concentration of
ownership also may have the effect of delaying, deferring or preventing a change in control of our company and
may make some transactions more difficult or impossible without the support of these stockholders. The
interests of these stockholders may conflict with those of other stockholders.

Anti-Takeover Provisions in Ansoft' s Certificate Of Incorporation, Bylaws, And Under Delaware Law Could
Prevent An Acquisition.

We have adopted a number of provisions that could have anti-takeover effects. The Board of Directors has the
authority to issue up to 1,000,000 shares of Preferred Stock without any further vote or action by Ansoft’s
stockholders. This and other provisions of Ansoft’s Certificate of Incorporation, Bylaws and Delaware Law
may have the effect of deterring hostile takeovers or delaying or preventing changes in control or management,
including transactions in which the stockholders of Ansoft might otherwise receive a premium for their shares
over then current market prices.

11




ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Ansoft occupies approximately 28,000 square feet of space at its headquarters in Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania under
a lease expiring in 2006. The Company also leases sales and support offices in North America, Europe and
Asia. Our current aggregate annual rental expenses for these facilities is approximately $2.5 million. Ansoft
believes that its existing facilities are adequate for its current needs and that suitable additional space will be

available when needed.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

From time to time, we become involved in various lawsuits, claims and proceedings related to the conduct of
our business. Based on information currently available and advice of counsel, Ansoft believes that the eventual
outcome of all claims against the Company will not, individually or in the aggregate, have a material adverse

effect on Ansoft’s business, consolidated operating results or financial condition.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS.

None.
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PART II

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDERS
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the range of high and low last reported sale prices for
the common stock as reported on the NASDAQ National Market.

High Low
Fiscal year ended April 30, 2006

1st Quarter (through June 2, 2005) ...ccoreiviroreriinineernireres e ne et e sases s raeebsinenanenes $ 2558 $§ 22.00
Fiscal year ended April 30, 2005 ~

LSE QUATTT ...veviiis et ete ettt et e b e et et e s e e ete b esaas e ebe st ans et e ebseteetes b etetasbessersasesaantensnres $ 1528 $ 12.25

2N QUATTET 1.cvviive ettt et e et e sb b e et e e s e e saeesebestbeesaeasteeats s nseanessbaearnessbaesessensensnensbesens 16.32 1247

BEA QUAITET ..o cierteat ettt et e e ase st st b eabe st reseentsabesrsense e e st eneesseassesae et ressantersesnsessens 2046  16.36

G QUATLET ...ttt er ettt seete s s st st eae e st et e b e e st et se s ek e st ebes s be et e st ebe e bt e b ansbene 2845  21.19
Fiscal year ended April 30, 2004

18t QUATTET . ....oivvieceeeiect ettt re ettt e et b et eae e s s b e e te b asbeee et e et et srets et saetsesaraentebsesnre e $ 1120 $ 8.05

200 QUATTET ..evvevieeirietir et e tes e teeaet s sta b as s asaebe st eabasse s ss e s esbabaessssassesteasestestobeesenresnebserenses 12.43 9.52

B QUATTRT L.ttt ettt ettt b e bttt e e ekt e an st e ere s e bt nrea 1490 1091

Gt QUATTET ..ottt rt et sttt st e e et st e nessre et s e et et arataebese e nn e e et e beeee 1576  12.85

The Company has never paid any cash dividends on its common stock. We currently intend to retain the
earnings from operations for use in the business and do not anticipate paying cash dividends with respect to our
common stock in the foreseeable future. The payment of any future dividends will be determined by the Board
of Directors in light of the then current conditions, including but not limited to the Company’s earnings and
financial condition.

On June 2, 2005, the Company had 237 shareholders of record, of which certain of the record holders were
registered clearing agencies holding common stock on behalf of participants of such clearing agencies.

The following table sets forth, for the period indicated, Equity Compensation Plan Information for the
Company.

Equity Compensation Plan Information
As of April 30, 2005

Number of
securities to be
issued upon Weighted-average Number of securities
exercise of exercise price of remaining available
outstanding outstanding for future issuance
options, warrants options, warrants under equity
Plan Category and rights and rights compensation plans
Equity compensation plans approved by
security Nolders .........cocevvivenerisicens e 2,450,420 $ 8.06 159,100
TOtAL .ot ere s 2,450,420 $ 8.06 159,100

In the fourth quarter of fiscal year ended April 30, 2005, we purchased 50,750 shares of Treasury Stock at an
average price of $24.20. For the fiscal year ended April 30, 2005, we purchased 783,966 shares of Treasury
Stock at an average price of $16.16. The following table sets forth the Treasury Stock purchased by month for
the quarter ended April 30, 2005.
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Total number of Maximum

shares number of
repurchased as shares that may
Total part of publicly yet be
number of Average announced repurchased
shares price paid plans or under the plans
Period repurchased _ per share programs or programs (1)
Feb. 1, 2005 — Feb. 28, 2005.......c.cccevervecenenenen. 30,000 $ 23.05 2,241,987 758,013
March 1, 2005 — March 31, 2005.......ccoovreeneee 12,500 $ 26.28 2,254,487 745,513
April 1, 2005 — April 30, 2005......coccoveerrenenee 8.250 $ 25.24 2,262,737 737,263

TOEAL .ot eeeeeee e et eeee e et s eeetseeeenaesneas 50,750 $ 2420

(1) All repurchases were made pursuant to a share repurchase program publicly announced in 1998 and
amended in 2002. Unless terminated earlier by resolution of our Board of Directors, the share repurchase
program will expire when we have repurchased all shares authorized for repurchase thereunder. Under the
plan the Company is authorized to repurchase 3,000,000 shares.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

The selected condensed consolidated financial data should be read in conjunction with “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations™ and the Consolidated Financial
Statements and related Notes thereto appearing elsewhere herein.

Fiscal Year Ended April 30,
2008 2004 2003 2002 2001
(in thousands, except per share data)

Consolidated Statement of Operations Data

Revenue:

LACEINSE ..vveveireireesieevtetie et steeveeereesresseenseesasressaesesrannes $ 39,322 % 32,301 $ 27,540 $ 36,683 $ 29,951

Service and Other........ccoovvvveiiieeiiceeeeie e ereee 28,348 22,352 _ 19,779 16,752 __ 13,607

TOAL TEVENUE ....ooiveiiiieiie et 67,670 54,653 _ 47319 53,435 _ 43,558

Cost of revenue:

LICENSE ..ottt ettt st sttt nne i e 505 702 683 938 843

Service and Other...........cocvevvcveresie e 1,349 1,155 970 871 701

Total cost of revenue..........c.ooeveeiiii e 1,854 1,857 1,653 1,809 1,544

GT0SS PIOFIt c.coveiveiice vt 65,816 52,796 45,666 51,626 _ 42,014

Operating expenses:

Sales and marketing ..., 31,108 26,930 24,611 24,966 22,025

Research and development ..........cccoviviniicninninencnnnn 16,901 15,690 18,588 17,705 12,711

General and adminiStrative ...........ocoveeeeiieereceeine e 4,861 4,488 4,284 4,555 3,667

AMOTHZAION ...cvviieeeeirecec et e et steeas e 1.552 3,182 3428 4.129 1,940

Total Operating eXpenses. ........coovcevrivieieeinecrenevennncns 54422 _ 50,290 _ 50911 51,355 _ 40,343

Income (loss) from OpPerations ..........co.cccoverreerrerencen 11,394 2,506 (5,245) 271 1,671

Other income (expense), net (1) ....ccocoovvrecninnnennens 2.206 904 1,152 1,347 (1,608)
Income (loss) before income taxes ......ccovveevveervereevrennns 13,600 3,410 (4,093) 1,618 63

Income tax expense (benefit) .....coccecviicvnnninvciennnnen 4,159 854 (970) 404 908

Net income (1088) .oereevereriereirniiecreererceere s $ 94418 2556 % (3,123) 8 1214 $ (8495)
Basic net income (10ss) per share.........cccouiverrnennnen. § 0813 02293 ©2063% 010§ (007
Diluted net income (loss) per share .......c.coevververennn, $§ 0738 0193 (0268 009 % _(0.07)
Weighted average shares outstanding — basic............... 11,621 11,672 11,809 11,844 11,690

Weighted average shares outstanding — diluted............ 12,946 13,248 11,809 13,649 11,690

1 Includes net realized gain (loss) on the sale of marketable securities of $732, ($7), $113, $0 and ($507) and
other than temporary declines on marketable securities of $27, $0, $78, $117 and $3,076 for the fiscal years
ending April 30, 2005, 2004, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

April 30,
2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
(in thousands)

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data

Cash and cash equivalents ........c.c..coecvreriereecrinnirienereeenens $ 119108 152188 7,173 § 5269 § 9412

Working capital........cocoveiiniiiiiiniiiie e 7,578 10,707 8,965 7,497 11,653

TOLAL ASSELS ..vvvviievivcreiieeeiic et te et e e e etre et sr e enreeaeesneans 73,421 67,636 63,154 68,224 57973

Long term Habilities . .....ccovviieieieireceeeee e 1,039 10,242 10,000 10,520 9,060

Total stockholders’ equity........cooceervvreecrnnrnrenreninencncnes 49285 41,686 39,826 43,647 41,595
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
contains certain forward-looking statements that involve substantial risks and uncertainties. When used in this
Form 10-K, the words “anticipate,” “plan,” “believe,” “estimate,” “expect” and similar expressions as they
relate to Ansoft or its management are intended to identify such forward-looking statements. Ansoft’s actual
results, performance or achievements could differ materially from the results expressed in, or implied by, these
forward-looking statements. Factors that could cause or contribute to such differences include (1) the degree
and rate of growth of the markets in which Ansoft competes and the accompanying demand for Ansoft’s
products, (2) the level of product and price competition, (3) the ability of Ansoft to develop and market new
products and to control costs, (4) the ability to expand its direct sales force, and (5) the ability to attract and
retain key personnel. Anosft does not undertake to publicly update or revise its forward-looking statements even
if experience or future changes make it clear that any projected results expressed or implied therein will not be
realized.

ELNTS LI

Overview

Ansoft is a developer of electronic design automation (“EDA™) software used in designing high performance
technology products and industries. Ansoft’s software is used by electrical engineers in the design of state of the
art technology products, such as cellular phones, internet networking, satellite communications systems,
computer chips and circuit boards, and electronic sensors and motors. Engineers use our software to maximize
product performance, eliminate physical prototypes, and reduce time-to-market.

Our overall sales increased this past year. We had an increase in revenues of 23.8% for the fiscal year ended
April 30, 2005 as compared to the prior year. The increase in revenues is primarily attributed to a continued
improving global economy. Our business grew in each of our three major regions and across both product lines.

Net income for the fourth quarter was $4.7 million compared to $2.8 million net income during the third fiscal
quarter of 2005.

Ansoft’s products are classified into two categories, high performance electronics and electromechanical (EM).
The following table presents product sales by market application as a percentage of total sales:

2005 2004 2003
High Performance EIECtIONICS ......coicviiviriiniieiieiterent e 81% 79% 82%
ElectromechaniCal..........oooiciviiiiiiieiierr ettt et eee 19% 21% 18%

Critical Accounting Policies
Ansoft’s critical accounting policies are as follows:
¢ Revenue Recognition
¢  Valuation of Accounts Receivable
¢  Impairment of Long-Lived Assets
¢ Impairment of Marketable Securities Available for Sale

o Deferred Tax Asset Valuation Allowance
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Revenue Recognition

Revenue consists of fees for licenses of software products and service and other revenue. Ansoft recognizes
revenue in accordance with SOP 97-2, “Software Revenue Recognition,” and related interpretations.
Accordingly, revenue is recognized when all of the following criteria are met: persuasive evidence of an
arrangement exists, delivery has occurred, the vendor’s fee is fixed or determinable, and collectability is
probable.

License revenue — Ansoft licenses its software generally on a perpetual basis with no right to return or
exchange the licensed software. License revenue is recognized based on the residual method.

Postcontract customer support (“PCS”) for an initial three month period is bundled with the perpetual license
fee. Revenue related to the three-month PCS is deferred and recognized ratably over the three-month term.
Ansoft’s vendor-specific objective evidence of fair value, or VSOE, for the three-month PCS is based upon the
pricing for comparable transactions when the element is sold separately. Ansoft’s VSOE for the three-month
PCS is based upon one fourth of the customer’s annual maintenance contract renewal rates.

Service and other revenue consists primarily of PCS revenue. Following the initial three month PCS period,
Ansoft offers customers one-year maintenance contracts generally at 15% of the list price of the respective
software products. Ansoft recognizes all maintenance revenue ratably over the respective maintenance period.
Customers typically renew maintenance agreements annually.

Revenue from customer training, support and other services is recognized as the service is performed.
Valuation of Accounts Receivable

Management reviews accounts receivable to determine which are doubtful of collection. In making the
determination of the appropriate allowance for doubtful accounts, management considers Ansoft’s history of
write-offs, relationships with its customers, and the overall credit worthiness of its customers. The allowance for
doubtful accounts as of April 30, 2005 and 2004 was $425,000 and $903,000 respectively. The decrease in
allowance in fiscal 2005 was primarily due to write-offs of $281,000 and a reduction of the reserve of $197,000
for collections on customer accounts previously reserved for. We had no significant changes in our collection
policies or payment terms during the fiscal year ended Apnl 30, 2005.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Company reviews assets with definite lives for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value of the assets may not be recoverable. A determination of impairment is made
based on estimates of future gross undiscounted cash flows. If such assets are considered to be impaired the

amount of the impairment is based on the excess of the carrying value over the fair value of the assets.

Goodwill and purchased intangibles with indefinite lives are reviewed annually for impairment. A
determination of impairment is based on the estimated fair value of the reporting entity.

Impairment of Marketable Securities Available for Sale
An impairment charge is recorded if a decline in the market value of any available for sale security below cost

is deemed to be other than temporary. The impairment is charged to earnings and a new cost basis for the
security is established.
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Deferred Tax Asset Valuation Allowance

Deferred tax assets are recognized for deductible temporary differences, net operating loss carryforwards, and
credit carryforwards. To the extent that it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax
asset will not be realized, a valuation allowance is established. The company considers projected future taxable
income and tax planning strategies in making this assessment.

The judgments used in applying the above policies are based on management’s evaluation of the relevant facts
and circumstances as of the date of the financial statements. Actual results may differ from those estimates. See
also the “Risk Factors” under “Item 1 Business”.

Results of Operations
Fiscal Year Ended Fiscal Year Ended
April 30 April 30
Percent Percent

(In thousands) 2008 2004 Change 2004 2003 Change
REVENUE....ccccoriirererierecneeee e $ 67,670 $ 54,653 23.8% $ 54,653 $ 47,319 15.5%
Cost 0of REVENUE ...covivvvveeereeeieeeee e 1.854 1,857 (0.2%) 1,857 1,653 12.3%
Gross Profit .........cccoeevivvineececvieiee v 65,816 _ 52,796 24.7% 52.796 45,666 15.6%
Sales and Marketing..........coccecveviceerccnnene 31,108 26,930 15.5% 26,930 24,611 9.4%
Research and Development....................... 16,901 15,690 7.7% 15,690 18,588 (15.6%)
General and Administrative ...........ccoeeneen. 4,861 4,488 8.3% 4,488 4,284 4.8%
AMOItiZALION ...cvveevevieeeeiraveeee e s 1,552 3182 (51.2%) 3.182 3428 (7.2%)
Total Operating Expenses...........cccuovvenenn. 54422 _ 50.290 8.2% 50.290 50911 (1.2%)
Income (loss) from operations .................. 11,394 2,506 354.7% 2,506 (5,245) —
Net realized gain (loss) on sale of

SECUIILIES tevevervurrireieerrerererarernereeseesceneenenes 732 N — N 113 —
Other income and interest expense, net .... 1.474 911 61.8% 911 1,039 (12.3%)
Income (loss) before income taxes ........... 13,600 3,410 298.8% 3,410 (4,093) —
Income tax expense (benefit)..........c.o.ueee. 4,159 854 387.0% 854 (970) —
Net income (loSs) ..cocveveviveereeriiniieennns $§ 9441 8% 2556 2694% § 2556 $ (3,123) —

Year Ended April 30, 2005 compared with Year Ended April 30, 2004

Revenue. Total revenue for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2005 increased 23.8% to $67.7 million. License
revenue for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2005 increased 21.7% to $39.3 million from $32.3 million. The
increase is attributed to an improving economy, particularly an improvement in the technology sectors resulting
in an increased demand for our software products worldwide. Growth occurred in both our high performance
electronics and EM product lines during the year. Service and other revenue for the fiscal year ended April 30,
2005 increased 26.8% to $28.3 million due to the continued growth of the installed base of customers under
annual maintenance agreements. Deferred revenue as of April 30, 2005 increased $6.6 million.

International revenue accounted for 57% of the Company’s total revenue in both of the years ended April 30,
2005 and 2004. Revenue in Asia accounted for 39% and 40% and revenue in Europe accounted for 18% and
17% in the years ended April 30, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Generally, the Company believes international
sales are subject to additional risks associated with international operations, including currency exchange
fluctuations, tariff regulations and requirements for export.

Exchange rates will fluctuate throughout the fiscal year. When comparing the percentage of international
revenues to total revenues for the fiscal year, using current year exchange rates for the prior year revenues, the
international revenue as a percentage of total revenue would be 56% of total revenue for the fiscal year ended
April 30, 2005.
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Cost of revenue. Cost of revenue consists primarily of software materials, personnel and other expenses related
to providing maintenance, post-contract customer support, licenses and upgrades to customers. Cost of revenue
for the fiscal years ended April 30, 2005 and 2004 was $1.9 million.

Sales and marketing expenses. Sales and marketing expenses consist of salaries; commissions paid to internal
sales and marketing personnel, promotional costs and related operating expenses. Sales and marketing expenses
increased 15.5% to $31.1 million in the year ended April 30, 2005, as compared to $26.9 million in the previous
fiscal year. The increase is primarily due to the increased sales volume. Sales and marketing expenses
represented 46% and 49% of total revenue for the fiscal years ended April 30, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Research and development expenses. Research and development expenses include all costs associated with the .
development of new products and enhancements to existing products. Total research and development expenses
increased 7.7% to $16.9 million in the year ended April 30, 2005, as compared to $15.7 million in the previous
fiscal year. Total research and development expenses increased primarily due to the addition of personnel to
meet software development requirements. Research and development expenses represented 25% and 29% of
total revenue in the years ended April 30, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

General and administrative expenses. General and administrative expenses increased 8.3% to $4.9 million in
the year ended April 30, 2005, as compared to $4.5 million in the previous fiscal year. The increase is due
primarily to costs associated with complying with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. General and
administrative expenses represented 7% and 8% of total revenue in the years ended April 30, 2005 and 2004,
respectively.

Amortization expense. Amortization expense in the fiscal year ended April 30, 2005 was $1.6 million, as
compared to $3.2 million in the previous fiscal year. The decrease is due to various intangible assets being fully
amortized in the prior fiscal year.

Net realized gain (loss) on sale of securities. Net realized gain for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2005 was $0.7
million compared to a net realized loss of ($7,000) for the previous fiscal year.

Other income and interest expense, net. Other income for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2005 was $1.5 million,
an increase from the $0.9 million reported in the previous fiscal year. The increase is primarily due to income
from marketable securities and foreign currency transaction gains.

Income tax expense (benefit). In the fiscal year ended April 30, 2005, the Company recorded tax expense of
$4.2 million compared to $0.9 million for the previous fiscal year. The effective tax rate of 30.6% has been
impacted favorably by approximately 8% as a result of the research and experimentation credit that is available
to the Company.

Year Ended April 30, 2004 compared with Year Ended April 30, 2003

Revenue. Total revenue for the year ended April 30, 2004 increased 15% to $54.7 million from $47.3 million in
the previous fiscal year. License revenue increased 17% to $32.3 million from $27.5 million. The increase is
primarily attributable to increased demand from customers for our high performance electronics and EM
products. The increase in revenues can also be attributed to an improving economy, particularly an
improvement in the technology sectors resulting in an increased demand for our software products. Service and
other revenue increased by 13% to $22.4 million from $19.8 million due to the continued growth of the installed
base of customers. Deferred revenue as of April 30, 2004 increased $1.1 million.

International revenue accounted for 57% and 56% of the Company’s total product revenue in the years ended

April 30, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Revenue in Asia accounted for 40% and 41% and revenue in Europe
accounted for 17% and 15% in the years ended April 30, 2004 and 2003.

19




Cost of revenue. of revenue consists primarily of software materials, personnel and other expenses related to
providing maintenance, post-contract customer support, licenses and upgrades to customers and amortization of
acquired technology. Our cost of license revenue increased 3% to $702,000 from $683,000 in the previous
fiscal year. This increase was attributable to the increase in the number of new license orders from the previous
fiscal year. Our cost of service and other revenue increased 19% to $1.2 million from $970,000 in the previous
fiscal year primarily due to the continued growth in our existing installed customer base.

Sales and marketing expenses. Sales and marketing expenses consist of salaries, commissions paid to sales and
marketing personnel, promotional costs and related operating expenses. Sales and marketing expenses increased
9% to $26.9 million in the year ended April 30, 2004, as compared to $24.6 million in the previous fiscal year.
The increase was due to higher commission expense as a result of a higher level of sales. Sales and marketing
expenses represented 49% and 52% of total revenue in the years ended April 30, 2004 and 2003, respectively.
The decrease in the percentage is primarily due to an improvement in operating margins as a result of increased
overall sales from the prior year.

Research and development expenses. Research and development expenses include all costs associated with the
development of new products and enhancements to existing products. Total research and development expenses
decreased by 16% to $15.7 million in the year ended April 30, 2004, as compared to $18.6 million in the
previous fiscal year. The decrease in research and development expenses was primarily attributable to the
closing of our Altra Broadband development site in Irvine, California in the third quarter of fiscal year ended
April 30, 2003 and the consolidation of some research and development facilities during the fiscal year ending
April 30, 2004. Research and development expenses represented 29% and 39% of total revenue in the years
ended April 30, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

General and administrative expenses. General and administrative expenses increased by 5% to $4.5 million in
the year ended April 30, 2004, as compared to $4.3 million in the previous fiscal year. General and
administrative expenses represented 8% and 9% of total revenue in the years ended April 30, 2004 and 2003.

Amortization expense. Amortization expense in the fiscal year ended April 30, 2004 was $3.2 million, as
compared to $3.4 million the previous fiscal year. The decrease was mainly due to certain intangibles becoming
fully amortized in the current fiscal year.

Net realized gain (loss) on sale of securities. Net realized loss for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2004 was
($7,000) compared to a net realized gain of $0.1 million for the previous fiscal year.

Other income and interest expense, net. Other income and interest expense for the year ended April 30, 2004
was $0.9 million, compared to $1 million reported for the previous fiscal year. The decrease is due primarily to
lower interest rates and investment returns in the current period.

Income tax expense (benefit). In the year ended April 30, 2004, the Company recorded a tax expense of
$854,000. The effective tax rate of 25% has been favorably impacted by approximately 14% as a result of the
research and experimentation credit that is available to the Company.

Quarterly Results of Operations

The following table presents unaudited quarterly results for each quarter of fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2004. The
information has been prepared on a basis consistent with the Company’s annual consolidated financial
statements and, in the opinion of management, contains all adjustments, consisting only of normal recurring
adjustments, necessary for a fair presentation of the information for such periods. The Company’s quarterly
results have been in the past, and may be in the future, subject to fluctuations due to increased competition, the
timing of new product announcements, changes in pricing policies by the Company or its competitors, market
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acceptance of new and enhanced versions of the Company’s products and the size and timing of significant
license transactions. The Company believes that results of operations for the interim periods are not necessarily
indicative of the results to be expected for any future period. Traditionally, sales in the first quarter will
decrease from the fourth quarter of the prior fiscal year. Traditionally, revenues will sequentially increase over
the next three quarters of the fiscal year. The fourth quarter is typically the highest revenue quarter for the fiscal
year.

Fiscal 2005 Fiscal 2004
April 30, Jan. 31, Oct. 31, July 31, April 30, Jan. 31, Oct. 31, July 31,
2005 2005 2004 2004 2004 2004 2003 2003
(in thousands, except per share data)
Total revenue............... $ 21,666 3 1738038 15946 $ 12,678 $ 17,761 $ 13982 $ 12,258 $ 10,651
Income (loss) from
Operations................... $ 63208 36428 2103 % 67) $ 3,585 % 1,008 $ 237) $ (1,850)
Net income (loss)......... $ 4736 2,784 % 1889 § 30 $§ 2830 % 941 $ 22) $ (1,192)
Basic net income (loss)
pershare.......ccocoeeee. $ 040 $ 024 % 0.16 $ 000 $ 024 % 0.08 $ (000) $ (0.10)
Diluted net income
(loss) per share .......... $ 036 3 021 % 0.14 $ 000 $ 021 $ 007 $ (000 $ (010
Weighted average
number of shares
outstanding
—basiC......oceeiiinenn, 11,866 11,490 11,567 11,664 11,738 11,640 11,637 11,672
—diluted.........ocu.. 13,064 13,390 13,238 13,314 13,504 13,306 11,637 11,672

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of April 30, 2005, Ansoft had $11.9 million in cash and cash equivalents, $28.5 million of marketable
securities and working capital of $7.6 million. Net cash provided by operating activities in the fiscal year ended
April 30, 2005 and 2004 was $16.5 million and $13.8 million, respectively.

Net cash used in investing activities in the fiscal year ended April 30, 2005 and 2004 was $4.8 million and $3.9
million, respectively. Capital expenditures were $0.8 million and $1.3 million in the fiscal year ended April 30,
2005 and 2004, respectively. Proceeds from the sale of marketable securities were $17.5 million and $12.7
million in the fiscal year ended April 30, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Purchases of marketable securities were
$21.5 million and $15.3 million in the fiscal year ended April 30, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The increase in
purchases of marketable securities was due to increased cash resulting from cash flows from operations.

Net cash used in financing activities was $15.4 million and $2.1 million in the fiscal year ended April 30, 2005
and 2004, respectively. Proceeds from the issuance of common stock were $7.2 million and $3.0 million in the
fiscal year ended April 30, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Funds used for the repurchase of common stock were
$12.7 million and $5.1 million in the fiscal year ended April 30, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The Company
continues to purchase common stock under its share repurchase plan.

Ansoft had available a $30.0 million secured line of credit from a domestic financial institution at an interest
rate equal to LIBOR plus 50 basis points or the Bank’s prime lending rate, at the Company’s option. The line of
credit was established in October 2004. As of April 30, 2005, the outstanding balance was $0. Ansoft believes
that the net cash provided by operating activities will be sufficient to meet its anticipated cash needs for
working capital and capital expenditures for the foreseeable future. Thereafter, if cash generated from
operations and existing cash and marketable securities are insufficient to satisfy the Company’s liquidity
requirements, Ansoft may seek additional funds through equity or debt financing. There can be no assurance
that additional financing will be available or that, if available, such financing will be on terms favorable to
Ansoft.
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A summary of Ansoft’s significant contractual obligations and commitments as of April 30, 2005 is as follows
(in thousands):

Contractual Obligations Total Less than I Year 1-3 Years _3-5 Years More than 5 Years
Operating Lease Obligations.............. $ 3,785 $ 1,756 $ 1,603 §$ 426 $  —

Stock Repurchase Program. The Company has consistently repurchased its common stock in public market
transactions over the past several years. During the fiscal year ended April 30, 2005, the Company purchased a
total of 783,996 shares of common stock at an average price of $16.16. The Company utilized $12.7 million in
cash to affect these common stock purchases. The Company may choose to continue purchases of its common
stock in the future.

In October 2004, the Company’s Board of Directors increased the authorized share repurchase amount by 1.0
million shares to 3.0 million.

The Company currently has two stock option plans (1988 Plan and 1995 Plan). Under the terms of both plans,
options to purchase common stock are granted at no less than the stock’s estimated fair market value at the date
of the grant and may be exercised during the specified future periods as determined by the Board of Directors.
Both plans provide that the options shall expire no more than ten years after the date of the grant. During the
fiscal year 2003, 111,750 shares were granted at an average exercise price of $14.13. At April 30, 2005 options
to purchase 1,532,940 shares of common stock were exercisable at an average exercise price of $7.38.

Foreign Currency Fluctuations. Foreign currency exchange rates positively affected revenue by approximately
$2.2 million, $1.8 million and $1.4 million in fiscal 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively, primarily due to the
strengthening of the Japanese yen and euro in relation to the U.S. dollar.

Effects of Inflation

To date, inflation has not had a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial results.

Seasonal Effects

Traditionally, sales in the first quarter will decrease from the fourth quarter of the prior fiscal year.

Traditionally, revenues will sequentially increase over the next three quarters of the fiscal year. The fourth
quarter is typically the highest revenue quarter for the fiscal year.
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ITEM 7A.QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE ABOUT MARKET RISK

Interest Rate Risk. The Company’s exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relates primarily to its
investment portfolio. The Company mitigates its risk by diversifying its investments among securities and limits
the amount of credit exposure to any one issuer. The Company does not hedge any interest rate exposures. The
portfolio includes only marketable securities with active secondary or resale markets to ensure portfolio
liquidity.

Mutual bond funds are subject to variable interest rates. As of April 30, 2005 and 2004, the Company had
mutual bond funds with a carrying value of $11.9 million and $17.4 million, respectively. The carrying value
approximates fair value at April 30, 2005. The average rates of return for the mutual bond funds at April 30,
2005 and 2004 were 5.63% and 4.91%, respectively.

As of April 30, 2004, the Company had variable rate debt of $10 million outstanding with an average interest
rate of 1.90%.

Foreign Currency Risk. The majority of our foreign currency transactions are denominated in the yen or the
euro, which are the functional currencies of Japan and Europe, respectively. As a result of transactions being
denominated and settled in such functional currencies, the risks associated with currency fluctuations are
primarily associated with foreign currency translation adjustments. We do not currently hedge against foreign
currency translation risks and do not currently believe that foreign currency exchange risk is significant to our
operations due to the short term nature of assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies.

The average foreign exchange rates used to translate the 2005, 2004 and 2003 statements of operations were as
follows:

Fiscal year ended Fiscal year ended Fiscal year ended
Foreign Currency April 30, 2005 April 30, 2004 April 30, 2003
YO ettt 107.75 113.50 122

BUTO ittt 1.24 1.15 .99
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Ansoft Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Ansoft Corporation and subsidiaries as of
April 30, 2005 and 2004, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity and
comprehensive income and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended April 30, 2005. In
connection with our audits of the consolidated financial statements, we also have audited the financial statement
schedule as listed in the accompanying index. These consolidated financial statements and financial statement
schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Ansoft Corporation and subsidiaries as of April 30, 2005 and 2004, and the results of their
operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended April 30, 2005, in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also, in our opinion, the related financial
statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole,
presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
{United States), the effectiveness of Ansoft Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting as of April
30, 2005, based on the criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) and our report dated May 26,
2005, expressed an unqualified opinion on management’s assessment of, and the effective operation of, internal
control over financial reporting.

/s/KPMG LLP -

Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania
May 26, 2005
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ANSOFT CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

April 30, April 30,
2005 2004
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash eqUIVAIENIS ......cccooveciriiiiciienccee et s $ 11,910 § 15,218
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $425 and $903,

TESPECHIVELY 1evteeetteiiietet ettt oottt b e bbb abes b te e nesbanenes 17,388 10,179
Deferred INCOME LAXES .viovvieerreereeetirereeeeeie st s resaeesereesssesesssestseresbnesaesestsassessaessestenns 229 343
Prepaid expenses and OTher ASSELS.......ooiuivieciiiieiiinieseees e s e 1,148 675
TOUAL CUITEIT ASSELIS voeveveeeineeeeetreeseteessenie et esinseseseseeassesesenesssntseesaseseanassestreessansessoessesnsresnns 30,675 26,415
Equipment and fUrniture, NEL ...........cceeiiieirireerineieeeieese e eeeseesressasseaes et eresssrae st assarsssseses 2,811 3,598
MaATKELABIE SECUTLIIES ...evervviiieeneeeetieeeir s ceesrres st eesteeeseesssesseetseessnnnsseeseesarenssennneessaeassns 28,496 25,502
OMRET @SSEES 1viuvveririeiiritieirreitrerite s ttesees s ssessaeresbesastesabesessaessasstesessasstasabansrsaasesestsbassseanssssns 146 383
DETEITEA INCOME LAXES «vvveveeririirerereesiissitrieeerisestreessssistesesesisssssssressressesssosaseesssnsismsessessas 6,177 5,158
GOOAWIIL 1ottt ettt et b a e st st e b ba et s e b sbe et ease st e s e s ta st st ses e ssensesnnsns 1,239 1,239
Other intangible aSSets, NEL .....c..ccecieiivieriiternier et ettt be e e sesnenieeren 3,877 5,341
TOTAL ASSELS .uvevuvriireeerriieeiirresiresiresssesaesssrbaessaesersaasserasssessainassessstnsaasnastsessnsasnssasssnsossennreene $ 73421 $ 67636
Liabilities and stockholders’ equity
Current liabilities
ACCOUNES PAYADIE .. viiviereitiireieciirrartriaae e seresessaseacasesseessnssessensensassessatesesssensessasessneaseasantos $ 231 $ 407
ACCIUCA PAYTONL .ottt ettt et b e b s s ke e e e ban 2,290 567
ACCTUEA INCOIME LAXES ..cuvvevrriererirreeraeresoaasiesssessesseerasereessesssesssssasstessomsssssssesssssssesssessesens 415 475
Other acCrued EXPENSES. .....vvviiiiiiieriiite e sr st 2,661 2,566
Current portion of deferred TEVENUE ........cccovvriiiiiiiiineec et 17.500 11,693
Total current HabIlItIES ......ccovvei ettt s v et se b s einb e e e s be s s eerenssnees 23,097 15,708
Long-term liabilities
Long-term portion of deferred FeVenue.........oovveevvirierininciiiic e 1,039 242
LANE OF Cretit. ettt sttt e rb e e e st e e nr b et e e st e nbeeenee e — 10,000
Total long-term Habilities .....cocccvririii et 1,039 10,242
TOLAl LADIIIHES «..evvviviieivieisetc et st sttt e et e st sreab e s et e se bt sabaseesnessentsetesbarsanss 24,136 25,950
Stockholders’ equity
Preferred stock, par value $0.01 per share; 1,000 shares authorized, no shares

OQUESTANAINE 1ottt ettt sr et se e s e sh e st sa ettt e st emesseesanaan e saenabesenan — —
Common stock, par value $0.01 per share; 25,000 shares authorized; issued 13,901

and 12,778 shares, respectively and outstanding 12,083 and 11,744, respectively........ 140 129
Additional paid-in CAPILAL .....ccoiviiiieiiiiiiiirc et ettt sr b e ate ettt ke e st e sesee b eebas 70,410 58,562
Treasury stock, 1,818 and 1,034 shares, resSpectively......c..ccvecrieeierninenieneienecsnsesrennas (21,762) (9,090)
Accumulated other comprehensive INCOME (10SS) .c..evveerivercrriereerinenierineeieeriessiesserenaas (338) 691
Retained earnings (defiCit)......c.ccoiiieriiiiieniiiciie ettt st e as e s 835 (8.606)
Total StoCKNOIEIS™ EQUILY.....e.eeveririiririt ittt sttt e e e et 49,285 41,686
Total liabilities and stockholders’ @qUILY .......ccoeeveeverrireeiee e saeneas $ 73421 $ 67,636

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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ANSOFT CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Fiscal Year Ended April 30, 2005 2004 2003
Revenue:
LICEIISE co.vreieie ettt ettt srr v et saee e s e st et sa e as s b e st e b e st st easete st rsbane b ses san $ 39,322 $ 32,301 $ 27,540
SErvice and ONET........cvvvieriireeririeriiercereecie e erret e rnene e sresrs e eve st easeraaneebesesenes 28,348 22,352 19,779
TOMAL TEVETIUC ... veieetiveeviateevevsetvsebassvestessastestssseestsssssesassatsassnnsonevees 67,670 54,653 47,319
Cost of revenue:
LICEINSE TEVEIIUE .veovvveeiiieireerreee e sereseeseevesnesressesnesseessstaessesssesssssesnassenssoneess 505 702 683
Service and OhET......ccvccvirieiiiciceeervee et ecres e e s e s b e b sb e tesrn e erebene 1,349 1.155 970
TOtal COSE OF TEVEIUE ....vevveriirecrieereceieere e tresevessaeseeese e ssestasnbesesenssnsesnie 1,854 1,857 1,653
GIOSS PLOIL 1.vevriiiireeeiete et se s st st et s st b sttt ae e ss e penssebe s 65,816 52,796 45,666
Operating Expenses:
Sales and Marketing .......cccecviivmiieiniice e e e 31,108 26,930 24,611
Research and development ..ot e e 16,901 15,690 18,588
General and admMINESITATIVE ........cooviireiieieeerr e sresesteesssveesrreesssaeesannes 4,861 4,488 4,284
AMOTHZAUON ...t e ettt rebe e aereentsensobsssbesssentaneesuns 1,552 3,182 3,428
Total Operating EXpenses .......cocieericiiiteneineneeeeseerincreesre st aebe et srresesees 54,422 50,290 50911
Income (1088) fTOmM OPETALIONS ....ovveueviivrtieciiieceere e e r e 11,394 2,506 (5,245)
Net realized gain (103s) on sale Of SECUTItIES...c..ccveeervrienirnereinre s ereceeveeaens 732 N 113
OUNET INCOIME.. . eeiiiiiiiierieeciseee e rseraeseressresssecresereerbnesraesteseasessessarsensessnsessnens 1,574 1,145 1,315
TNEEIESE EXPEIISE ..o eveuirieeiiicrrericeerern e et trene s es e sae e st s e e e ene (100) (234) (276)
Income (10sS) before INCOME LAXES .....ovviieerrieriirrieerriee et ere e stesarerases 13,600 3,410 (4,093)
Income taxes expense (Benefit)......ccooveveceareinieiinecienrirenienree e seieseereeenes 4.159 854 (970)
NEt INCOME (10SS) 1evvevrrverrirerrnerieresieieaereertrtesaestassesseessessessnsssensessressessessnesene $ 9441 $_ 2556 $§ (3.123)
Basic net income (1085) PEr SHATE.........vvvieinencinin e $ 081 $ 022 § (026
Diluted net income (108S) PET SHATE ..c.ccoevvirirereircirerieeie s erenrenes $ 073 8 049 $§_(0.26)
Weighted average shares outstanding — basiC......ccoceevininecieierrenaenreeene e 11,621 11,672 11,809
Weighted average shares outstanding — diluted............ccconieniicniinnnnnnne 12,946 13,248 11,809

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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ANSOFT CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)

Fiscal year ended April 30,
2005 2004 2003

Cash flows from operating activities
INEL INCOME (0SS ..veuvirrraeirrerrieirenirrrcenerssesserinsreserereessesressaaneerssssessnvsnsssessnenne $ 9441 § 25556 $ (3,123)

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by
operating activities

DIEPTECIALION ...vevieeeiesteeeni ettt e st er b st se e s b e see et b ne s 1,608 1,536 1,838
ATNOTHZAON 1ovvvevietiiivetisverbetsiesreeresbesaaberae e st et bebr e sra st ssberesbesbaseesesbeseennees 1,879 3,322 3,724
DEferTed LAXES ..vovvveviiiiiriiereee e e e sea et s s e ses e sre s e st anseene s bennearnes (905) (282) (408)
Impairment charge to equIpmMent .........ccccviiiiieie e — — 407
Non-cash charge on marketable SECUTties. ... ineciiinnie e 27 — 78
(Gain) loss on sale of marketable SECULIHES ....oveevieievenrerierreereccrie e (732) 7 (113)
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effect from acquisitions
ACCOUNLES TECRIVADIE ..c..eiiii it rne e st e rr e e e (6,862) 3,789 1,076
Prepaid expenses and Other @SSets.........uvvirverrierienieneieinec e neenes (490) 167 163
Other long-term assets and liabilities, Net.........ccccovviivrevrcnriener e 196 53 (589)
Accounts payable and accrued eXPenSes .......vcevereirerieeriecrineinenreesesineees 6,108 1,566 (843)
Deferred FEVENMUE. ..ottt sttt st st ere e te b e baesaneseaee e 6,224 1,056 1,964
Net cash provided by operating activiti€s .......c..cceerecrvcscrinnvicrrecnans 16.494 13,770 4,174
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of equipment and furniture........cc.cocovvemeiienne s (797) (1,305) (755)
Proceeds from the sale of equipment...........c.coovciviniiicieiins — — 395
Proceeds from the sale of marketable SECUTItES.......coceveviiivievieicrecieieeeen 17,531 12,723 6,983
Purchase of marketable SECUTILIES .. ..c.evvevriirie et cereee e (21,537) _ (15.320) _ (5.648)
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities .......c.c.ocooireeicnnn, (4.803) (3.902) 975
Repayment of line of credit.........ccoevvviivinviiii s {10,000) — —
Payment of note payable...........ccooiriiimiiiiiii e — — (1,850}
Purchase of treasury StOCK .........covcviiienieriiiniinnecti e e (12,672) (5,136) (2,283)
Proceeds from the issuance of common stock, el ......cooviviviviniieeveiiineerie e 7,243 3,046 494
Net cash used in financing aCHVILIES......c..ccvecevvirercenriienireneencee e (15,429) (2,090) (3,639
Effect of exchange rate changes .........ccoecvvviviincricinine s 430 267 394
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ..........cccovvvmneeivirerenennnen 15.218 7.173 5.269
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year........coeecvivcevcnnicnninnencnne, $ 11910 $ 15218 $ 7.173
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information
Cash paid fOr INCOME LAXES ...vvvvrveervirrrreeecirereeeereteveresrsarseenreeaseeesseenaeeenne $ 856 $ 234§ 276
Cash paid fOT INLETESE ..v.vvvieeieietireeierrerraecererereere st tssees st b sneeses e $ 106 $ 99 § 846

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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ANSOFT CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(in thousands, except per share amounts)

1. Nature of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Nature of Business

Ansoft Corporation (“Ansoft” or the “Company”) is a developer of electronic design automation (“EDA”)
software used in high performance technology products and industries. Ansoft’s software is used by electrical
engineers in the design of state of the art technology products, such as cellular phones, internet networking,
satellite communications systems, computer chips and circuit boards, and electronic sensors and motors.

Principles of Consolidation and Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries.
All intercompany transactions have been eliminated. In July 2000, Ansoft announced its formation of Altra
Broadband to pursue the development of critical intellectual property and products for broadband wireless and
optical communications. In spite of certain technical successes, profitable deployment of intellectual property
developed by Altra Broadband’s Irvine Technology Center in this telecom environment was deemed unlikely in
the near term. As such, the Company closed the Irvine Technology Center during the quarter ended October 31,
2002, resulting in a restructuring charge of $532 that is included in “Research and development expense.”

The restructuring was completed in the quarter ended October 31, 2002. The total $532 restructuring charge was
comprised of a $407 charge for the impairment of fixed assets and a charge of $125 for the remaining lease
obligations for which a liability was recorded as of October 31, 2002. The impairment charge was based on
third-party offers to purchase the remaining assets.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with US generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, revenues and expenses and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. The estimates and
assumptions used in the accompanying consolidated financial statements are based on management’s evaluation
of the relevant facts and circumstances as of the date of the consolidated financial statements. Actual results
may differ from those estimates. :

Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less when
purchased to be cash equivalents.

Marketable Securities

Marketable securities consist of corporate bonds, bond and government agency mutual funds, and mortgage
backed securities that are classified as available for sale as of April 30, 2005 and 2004. Marketable securities
available for sale are recorded at fair market value based on quoted market prices and any unrealized gains or
losses are recorded as a separate component of stockholders’ equity. Costs of investments sold/held are
determined on the average cost method and are classified as non-current. An impairment charge is recorded if a
decline in the market value of any available for sale security below cost is deemed to be other than temporary.
The impairment is charged to earnings and a new cost basis for the security is established. Dividend and interest
income are recognized when earned.
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Equipment and Furniture

Equipment and furniture are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Depreciation for
financial reporting purposes is computed using the straight-line method based upon the estimated useful lives of
the assets, which range from three to seven years. Assets acquired under capital leases and leasehold
improvements are amortized over their useful life or the lease term, as appropriate.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill and other intangible assets, which include customer lists, a non-compete agreement, and purchased
technology, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and are reviewed periodically (at least annually) for
impairment. The non-compete agreement is related to Agilent’s HFSST™ software purchased on May 3, 2001.
Purchased technology represents acquired software which has been fully developed, achieved technological
feasibility, reached commercial viability, and is generating revenue. In accordance with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” which was adopted on May
1, 2002 (the beginning of Ansoft’s fiscal year 2003), goodwill and purchased intangibles with indefinite useful
lives are no longer amortized but are reviewed periodically (at least annually) for impairment. Accordingly,
Ansoft has ceased to amortize approximately $1.2 million of goodwill, net of amortization, including workforce
intangibles that were subsumed into goodwill upon adoption of SFAS No. 142. Acquired intangibles with
definite lives are amortized on a straight-line basis over the remaining estimated economic life of the underlying
products and technologies (original lives assigned are three to seven years), and reviewed for impairment in
accordance with SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for Impairment or Disposal of Long-lived Assets.”

The Company reviews the realizability of acquired technology, goodwill and other intangibles on an ongoing
basis, and if there is an indication of impairment, the Company performs procedures under the applicable
accounting pronouncements to quantify any impairment that exists. Determining the amount of impairment of
these assets requires the Company to estimate future cash flows and make judgments regarding discount rates
and other variables that impact the net realizable value or fair value of those assets, as applicable. Actual future
cash flows and other assumed variables could differ from these estimates.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

SFAS No. 144 provides a single accounting model for long-lived assets to be disposed of. SFAS No. 144 also
changes the criteria for classifying an asset held for sale; and broadens the scope of businesses to be disposed of
that qualify for reporting as discontinued operations and changes the timing of recognizing losses on such
operations. The Company adopted SFAS No. 144 on May 1, 2002. The adoption of SFAS No. 144 did not
affect the Company’s financial statements.

In accordance with SFAS No. 144, long-lived assets, such as property, plant and equipment, and purchased
intangibles subject to amortization, are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of the asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and
used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to estimated undiscounted future cash
flows expected to be generated by the asset. If the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated future cash
flows, an impairment charge is recognized by the amount by which the carrying amount of an asset exceeds the
fair value of the asset.

Revenue Recognition
Revenue consists of fees for licenses of software products and service and other revenue. Ansoft recognizes

revenue in accordance with SOP 97-2, “Software Revenue Recognition,” and related interpretations.
Accordingly, revenue is recognized when all of the following criteria are met: persuasive evidence of an
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arrangement exists, delivery has occurred, the vendor’s fee is fixed or determinable, and collectibility is
probable.

License revenue — Ansoft licenses its software generally on a perpetual basis with no right to return or
exchange the licensed software. License revenue is recognized based on the residual method.

Postcontract customer support (“PCS”) for an initial three month period is bundled with the perpetual license
fee. Revenue related to the three-month PCS is deferred and recognized ratably over the three-month term.
Ansoft’s vendor-specific objective evidence of fair value, or VSOE, for the three-month PCS is based upon the
pricing for comparable transactions when the element is sold separately. Ansoft’s VSOE for the three-month
PCS is based upon one fourth of the customer’s annual maintenance contract renewal rates.

Service and other revenue consists primarily of PCS revenue. Following the initial three month PCS period,
Ansoft offers customers one-year maintenance contracts generally at 15% of the list price of the respective
software products. Ansoft recognizes all maintenance revenue ratably over the respective maintenance period.
Customers typically renew maintenance agreements annually.

Revenue from customer training, support and other services is recognized as the service is performed.

Deferred revenue

Ansoft’s deferred revenue consists of unearned revenue on annual maintenance contracts and the deferred
component of PCS.

Software Development Costs

The Company accounts for software development costs in accordance with SFAS No. 86, “Accounting for the
Costs of Computer Software to be Sold, Leased or Otherwise Marketed.” Software development costs are
capitalized beginning when a product’s technological feasibility has been established by completion of a
working model of the product and ending when a product is available for general release to customers.
Completion of a working model of the Company’s products and general release have generally coincided. As a
result, the Company has not capitalized any software development costs for any periods presented since the
amounts have not been material.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes using the asset and liability method. Under the asset and liability
method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to
differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their
respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets are recognized for deductible temporary differences, net operating loss
carryforwards, and credit carryforwards if it is more likely than not that the tax benefits will be realized. To the
extent a deferred tax asset cannot be recognized under the preceding criteria, a valuation allowance is
established.

Net Income (Loss) Per Share

Basic net income (loss) per share is calculated using the weighted-average number of common shares
outstanding during the period. Diluted net income per share is computed using the weighted-average number of
common shares and potentially dilutive common shares outstanding during the period. Potentially dilutive
common shares consist of the incremental commeon shares issuable upon the exercise of employee stock
options, and are computed using the treasury stock method. Potentially dilutive common shares are excluded
from the calculation if their effect is antidilutive. Since there was a net loss for the fiscal year ended April 30,
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2003, stock options totaling 551 shares were excluded from the diluted earnings per share calculation because
their inclusion would have been anti-dilutive. All unexercised stock options for the fiscal year ended April 30,
2005 are included in the computation of diluted earnings per share. Unexercised stock options of 206 shares for
the year ended April 30, 2004 are not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share because the
option exercise price was greater than the average market price, and therefore their inclusion would have been
anti-dilutive.

The following is a reconciliation of the numerators and denominators of the basic and diluted EPS computations
for the years presented:

Income (loss) Shares Per share amount

Fiscal year ended April 30, 2005

Basic net income per Share ......c.co.vooeveeioiinneeese e $ 9,441 11,621 $ 0.81
Effect of dilutive securities:

SLOCK OPHONS ...covitiie ittt et — 1,325 (0.08)
Diluted net inCoOme Per SHare .........coevreeireenierncererneeenessene e $ 9441 12,946 $ 073
Fiscal year ended April 30, 2004
Basic net inCOME PET SHATE «.....evvreririeirereeeirieieireisssiissessseeseseaeseins $ 2,556 11,672 $ 022
Effect of dilutive securities:

STOCK OPLONS .....eeiieeriiisreereecriarenree et etreeesree e et raressesncessesanssnens — 1,576 (0.03)
Diluted net InCOME PEr Share .....c.ccocviieiiiinreeniiee i $ 2556 13.248 $ 019

Fiscal year ended April 30, 2003
Basic net 1088 PEL SHATE .....cvovovviiierereierere e et seneone $ (3,123) 11,809 $ (0.26)
Effect of dilutive securities:

StOCK OPLIOMS ...eveciierire et sirsrerere et cveeatrie et estea e aeeeseesnaeanens

Diluted net 10ss per Share.........ccoceveeeeiniciincni e $ (3.123) 11.809 $ (0.26)

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock-based compensation in accordance with the Financial Accounting Standards
Board’s (“FASB”) SFAS No. 123 “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.” This statement permits a
company to choose either a fair value based method of accounting for its stock-based compensation
arrangements or to comply with the Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 25 intrinsic value based
method, adding pro forma disclosures of net income and earnings per share computed as if the fair value based
method had been applied in the financial statements. The Company has adopted SFAS No. 123 by retaining the
APB Opinion No. 25 method of accounting for stock-based compensation with pro forma disclosures of net
income and earnings per share. The pro forma effects of stock options on the Company’s net income (loss) for
those periods may not be representative of the pro forma effect for future periods due to the impact of vesting
and potential awards. Pursuant to APB Opinion No. 25 the Company did not recognize compensation expense
in its statements of operations for the fiscal years ended April 30, 2005, 2004 and 2003.
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Pro forma information regarding net income and earnings (loss) per share is required by SFAS No. 123. This
information is required to be determined as if the Company had accounted for its employee stock options
(including shares issued under the Stock Purchase Plan, collectively called “options™) granted subsequent to
April 30, 1995 under the fair value method prescribed by SFAS No. 123. The fair value of options granted in
fiscal years 2005, 2004 or 2003 has been estimated at the date of grant using a Black-Scholes option pricing
model with the following weighted average assumptions:

Fiscal year ended April 30,

2003 2004 2003
RiISK-TTEE TALE (T0).ccvueeeiriiieeiirireriitieiiieeeeersrt s eettresetaessataesesasessneearsaesesaseessinaenanss 4.02 2.00 2.00
VOLALLLY (F0) cvveiveeeereioniriirerenininirinetereresesiereseresietessanssissr s e sese st sosarassseressesesenes 70.65 11540 110.00
Expected 1ife (IN YEAIS) ...ovveereereeririiirerii i ceer b ereres e sre e sesres e st e es 6.00 6.00 7.50
Dividend YIEld () ...vcvevireerieicnieiesiiiiarie e et s sne ettt n e et ee s 0.00 0.00 0.00

The Black-Scholes option valuation model was developed for use in estimating the fair value of traded options
that have no vesting restrictions and are fully transferable. In addition, option valuation models require the input
of highly subjective assumptions, including the expected stock price volatility. Because the Company’s options
have characteristics significantly different from those of traded options, and because changes in the subjective
input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate, in the opinion of management, the existing
models do not necessarily provide a reliable single measure of the fair value of its options. However, based
solely on this analysis, the weighted average estimated fair value of employee stock options granted during
2005, 2004 and 2003 was $9.29, $7.78 and $4.65 per share, respectively.

For purposes of pro forma disclosures, the estimated fair value of the options is amortized to expense over the
options’ vesting period. The Company’s pro forma information follows:

Fiscal year ended April 30,

2005 2004 2003
Net income (loss), aS TEPOTLEA ...covververiecririeee it et seesre e sreebeseare e anens $ 9441 $ 2,556 $ (3,123)
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation expense determined
under fair value based method, net of taX......ccoovevvvivevsncnirnee e (2,289) _ (2.469) _ (2.956)
Pro forma net iNCOME (L0SS) cueviviirirevrriesisiecrererenresesesvessirtestrsssesssessesisseresssens $ 7,152 % 87 § (6,079
Pro forma net income (loss) per basic common Share..............coeevevevevererenennn. $§ 062 $ 001 $ (051
Pro forma net income (loss) per diluted common share............cc.cccoeeevrvivenee. § 055 §$ 001 $ (0.51)

Because the Company anticipates making additional grants and options vest over several years, the effects on
pro forma disclosures of applying SFAS No. 123 are not likely to be representative of the effects on pro forma
disclosures of future years.

Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income includes foreign currency translation gains and losses and other unrealized gains and
losses related to marketable securities that have been previously excluded from net income and reflected instead
in equity. The Company has reported the components of comprehensive income, net of tax of $0 in 2005, 2004
and 2003 in its consolidated statements of stockholder’s equity and comprehensive income.

The components of accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income are as follows net of tax:

April 30,
2005 2004

Foreign currency translation gain (108S) ......cevrvevecrininrenrerereeesieereninsernsnsesesineenessnsnsssesesessseonas $ 276 $ (83)
Unrealized (loss) gain on available for sale SECUIIES.......oevveviieieeecrecriiree e cve e eseieens (614) __774
Accumulated other comprehensive (10S$) INCOME ..........cerieeeeriierirnrerieieseeseee e e e saesresieeeieane $ (338) $ 691
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Foreign Currency Translation

The functional currency of the Company’s foreign subsidiaries is the respective local currency. Accordingly,
assets and liabilities are translated to United States dollars at the exchange rates in effect as of the balance sheet
date, and results of operations are translated using the average rates in effect for the period presented.
Transaction gains and losses, which are included in other income in the accompanying consolidated statements
of income, have not been significant.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying value and fair value of the Company’s receivables, payables and debt obligations are estimated to
be substantially the same at April 30, 2005 and 2004.

Reclassification
Certain amounts from prior years have been reclassified to conform with the current year’s presentation.
2. Recent Accounting Pronouncements

On December 16, 2004, the FASB issued FASB Statement No. 123R “Share-Based Payment”. The Company
will transition to the new requirements of the Statement by using the modified prospective transition method. '
This method requires compensation cost to be recognized on the date of adoption for any outstanding unvested
share-based payments, based on the grant date fair value as calculated under SFAS No. 123. As originally
issued, Statement No. 123R was to become effective for the Company in its fiscal 2006 second quarter.
However, on April 14, 2005, the SEC announced that it would not require registrants to adopt Statement No.
123R until at least the beginning of the first fiscal year beginning after June 15, 2005 (for the Company, fiscal
2007). The Company is currently evaluating the transition provisions of this standard.

On March 29, 2005, the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) staff issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No.
107, “Share-Based Payment” (SAB No. 107), which expressed the SEC staff’s views on Statement No. 123R,
but did not modify any of Statement No. 123R’s provisions. The Company is evaluating the views expressed by
the SEC in SAB No. 107 in conjunction with its assessment of Statement No. 123R’s impact to the Company.
3. Equipment and Furniture

Equipment and furniture consist of the following:

April 30,
2005 2004
Computers and EQUIPINENL .....ceovereiierirti oottt s st sresaas b snones $ 7,168 § 7,410
FUITHIUTE AN FIXEUTES ..ovveeie ittt sttt e ettt eesesbereesosbbeeeesbeae st esssabesssssrntenresssssseesesssarbeessassebens 1,675 1,610
Leasehold IMPIOVEITIEIILS .......coiriiiiiirireertiiirieeten ettt et s ean et er et e st s eas st ebesass s esne e saees 929 873
9,772 9,893
Less allowances for depreciation and amortiZation ..........ceeccerrieerireriieecieniniene e 6,961 _ 6,295

$ 2811 $ 3,598
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4. Other Intangible Assets

Other intangible assets consist of the following:

April 30,

2005 2004
CUSEOIMET LISt 1. eveievriiieeeniiitieetveseteceebeeeesteeseseeeeesbse st s astsetes st eesteesbeesbbsasseossessnensssessssoertsesnnsos $ 18488 $ 18,488
INOMECOMPELE .....eonteiieiierirecete it sttt s et s r e r e er e s e s ea s st sresa e st s s e b ea e nre e esbeseene 2,500 2,500
Purchased tECHNOIOZY ..o.veierieiiieiireneic ittt ettt et st ee e e 2,230 2,230
TTAAEIMATK ....cooveeee ettt e st ea e e te e e s et e s e an e s e seaeassresessneestbesssatsssaansessaneeessnnesssnees 212 212

23,430 23,430
Less allowances fOr amMOTtiZAtION. ........ccvveiivvieeerieeenieieeitreeeieeeeseeestreeseeeeeenreeesentessenseeensenns 19,553 18,089

$ 38778 5341

These intangible assets are amortized over their estimated useful lives, ranging between three and seven years.
There are no expected residual values related to these intangible assets. Estimated fiscal year amortization
expense is as follows: 2006 - $1,435; 2007 - $1,272; and 2008 - $1,170.

5. Marketable Securities

Marketable securities, classified as available for sale, are summarized as follows:

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Market

cost Gain _(loss) value

April 30, 2005

Mutual Bond FUNGS ........ccovcveeeinineerirrieerrneenieesseesenenaness $ 11,861 $ 99 $ (425) % 11,535

Corporate Bonds ..., 17,249 45 (333) 16.961
Total marketable SECUTILES «.vuvveeiiiviririrereeeiirieriee et e ierrreeeons $ 29.110 $ 144 $ (758) $ 28496
April 30, 2004

Mutual Bond FUnds.........ccccoovevieneene et sveinnne $ 17413 $ 1,183 $ (290) $ 18,306

Mortgage Backed SeCUrities. . .....covvevermercrvnrescneirineneencees 4,251 —_ 48) 4,203

Corporate Bonds ... e 3.064 — a1 2.993
Total marketable SECUTITIES ...veeevveereierereeereeertaeeseee et eeee s envens $ 24728 $ 1.183 $ (409) $ 25502

Other income consists of dividend and interest income and other than temporary declines in fair value of
marketable securities. Dividend and interest income was $1,535 $1,145 and $1,315 in fiscal year 2005, 2004
and 2003, respectively. Other than temporary declines were $27, $0 and $78 in fiscal year 2005, 2004 and 2003,
respectively.

Gross realized gains on the sale of marketable securities were $828, $0 and $113 in fiscal year 2005, 2004 and
2003, respectively. Gross realized losses on the sale of marketable securities were $96, $7 and $0 in fiscal year
2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

The following table sets forth certain information relating to the estimated fair value and unrealized losses on
marketable securities available-for-sale as of April 30, 2005. Unrealized losses have been segregated into those
existing for less than twelve months and those existing for twelve months or longer.

Less than 12 months 12 months or longer Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Description of Securities Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
Mutual Bond Funds.......... $ 6,657 $ 271 $ 2,789 $ 154 $ 9,446 $ 425
Corporate Bonds .............. $ 11,099 $ 274 $ 1,267 $§ 59 $ 12366 $ 333
Total oo, $ 17,756 $ 545 $ 4,056 $ 213 $ 21,812 3 758
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At April 30, 2005, the contractual maturities of the debt securities available for sale are:

Amortized Cost _Fair Value
DUE 1N 0N YEAT OF 1888 .ceieriiiiiiiiii ettt ettt st

Due after one year through fiVe YEars.........coouvveiinnininieericereiene et ssere e $ 8,896 $ 8,709
Due after five years through ten years ... s $ 8353 $ 8252
DUE AftEr TEN YEATS ....ecvivinieiericere ettt sttt e st sre s et s $ — $ —

TOUAL .ottt ettt ke ettt $ 17.249 $ 16961

It is the Company’s policy to review the fair value of these marketable securities on a regular basis to determine
whether its investments are other-than-temporarily impaired. If the Company believes the carrying value of an
investment is in excess of its fair value, and this difference is other-than-temporary, it is the Company’s policy
to write down the investment to reduce its carrying value to fair value.

6. Line of Credit

On October 21, 2004, the Company entered into a one year secured credit facility, with an aggregate
commitment of up to $30 million, with a domestic financial institution (the “Bank”). The facility replaced the
Company’s $20 million secured facility which was terminated during the first quarter of fiscal 2005. At the
Company’s option, borrowings under the credit facility bear interest at either the Bank’s prime lending rate or
the LIBOR rate plus a margin of 50 basis points. The facility is secured by the Company’s marketable
securities.

The ability of the Company to borrow under the credit facility is subject to our ongoing compliance with certain
financial and other covenants, including a tangible net worth covenant. As of April 30, 2005, the Company was
in compliance with its covenants under the credit facility.

As of April 30, 2005, the Company had no borrowings under the credit facility. As of April 30, 2004, the
Company had variable rate debt of $10 million outstanding with an average interest rate of 1.90%.

7. Leases

The Company leases its corporate headquarters in Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania, and other facilities under operating
lease agreements that expire over the next five years. Rental expense incurred by the Company under operating
lease agreements totaled $2.499, $2,500 and $2,658 for the years ended April 30, 2005, 2004 and 2003,
respectively. The future minimum lease payments for such operating leases as of April 30, 2005, are:

Year ending April 30,

200G, ceie ettt e e b e e st et e erae et be oAb e et e ettt aaeRne e b kb e e b b e rs e ek s obseabeea bt et beeeaeee ke e e ra e benabeeene 1,756
2007 ettt e e e se b b e e b et ehbe e te e ba b se ke e Rabe A be s aeaee st be st reaeneenebesaseaastenabesntes 891
2008 ettt ettt et e e e te et teehteeansaetbeeeate bt e eateeatht e eeetsa e taeeetbeeeneaeeartaeenaaeaesbeeaabaennn 712
2009 .ttt e e e bt e et et at bt et stbeets e ta R e e neaate et eaat e et Re e e et e taennsears e araenaasatbeerrerbbeatee 421
2000 ettt ettt ebe et e be s reete e b e e ts e haerteeetbe et Re e bee b et R s et nabe ettt enbeeabenabe et bt atnenabeentaenrannreeas 5

8. Common Stock Options

The Company’s 1988 Stock Option Plan (1988 Plan) authorizes the issuance of 850 shares of common stock for
the grant of incentive or nonstatutory stock options to employees and directors. Under the terms of the 1988
Plan, options to purchase common stock are granted at no less than the stock’s estimated fair market value at the
date of the grant and may be exercised during specified future periods as determined by the Board of Directors.
The 1988 Plan provides that the options shall expire no more than ten years after the date of the grant.
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The Company’s 1995 Stock Option Plan (1995 Plan) authorizes the issuance of 3,500 shares of common stock
for the grant of incentive or nonstatutory stock options to employees and directors. Under the terms of the 1995
Plan, options to purchase common stock are granted at no less than the stock’s estimated fair market value at the
date of the grant and may be exercised during specified future periods as determined by the Board of Directors.
The 1995 Plan provides that the options shall expire no more than ten years after the date of the grant.

Shares underlying outstanding options under the 1988 Plan and the 1995 Plan are as follows:

Shares Underlving Outstanding Options

Shares Price
Outstanding, April 30, 2002.......cccvevriminiicnieineniee e 3,637 $ 1.75—813.55
Granted.....o.ooov it sttt e aeseee st e reae e ents 651 $ 9.03—$13.55
EXEICISEA v.vveereieieiieececeeeee ettt ee b sess b eb e s ettt esesn s e e (93) $ 1.75—%$9.75
TErMUNALEQ ....ocviiveeresieiir et cteeeestae e e eraesre e rresraesae e erbenneases (212) $ 4.75—%12.95
Outstanding, April 30, 2003.......cceivmeeircreeririrrereieeiessrennenees 3.983 $ 1.75—813.55
GIANLE. .. .ovevcvercireeeeiete ettt ettt sttt en et beeeas e 79 $ 8.05—%10.91
EXEICISEA . vviiiecriiieteiieie ettt ereteeteste st seesaete st era s etaebs e seeresnesens (482) $ 1.75—8%12.95
TErMUINALEd ....ccovevieeiiieiri et e e st ee e sreaeenbeneesaanes (116) $ 47581295
Outstanding, April 30, 2004.........c.ooreeoiiirrieieeeecceeeeieieseeeeeennens 3,464 $ 1.75—8$13.55
Granted......ccoviii ettt eee et e ee e eaens 112 $ 12.47—%$21.19
EXEICISEA vt e eee st sts s e e st e s (1,123) $ 1.75—%13.55
TErMINALED c.c.vveveeriierietiie ettt bttt e be s enbsene 3) $ 47581295
Outstanding, April 30, 2005........ccociiiriiiriniecicrenr e 2,450 $ 3.50—8$21.19

Options to purchase 1,533 shares of common stock were exercisable as of April 30, 2005 and options to
purchase 159 shares of common stock were available for future grant as of April 30, 2005.

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding as of April 30, 2005:

Options Qutstanding Options Exercisable
‘Weighted-
Number Average Weighted- Number Weighted-
Outstanding Remaining Average Exercisable Average
at April 30, Contractual Exercise at April 30, Exercise
Range Of Exercise Prices 2005 Life Price 2005 Price
$3.50-$5.13 covovovooooeere o 931 5.0 $ 507 654 $ 5.10
$5.50-$8.25 .o 301 4.8 $ 633 262 $ 6.24
$8.31-$12.47 voovvvoereeercerrnnn, 798 6.7 $ 9.42 432 $ 9.11
$12.85-816.36 ....ccvirveeerecirennn, 412 7.0 $ 13.20 185 $ 12.98
$21.19 e, 8 9.8 $ 21.19 0 $ 21.19

9. Segment Reporting, Export Sales and Credit Risk

The Company has adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 131, “Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and
Related Information”, which requires the reporting of segment information using the “management approach”.
Under this approach, operating segments are identified in substantially the same manner as they are reported
internally and used by the Company’s chief operating decision maker (“CODM?”) for purposes of evaluating
performance and allocating resources. Ansoft’s chief operating decision maker is its President and Chief
Executive Officer, or CEO. Based on this approach, the Company has one reportable segment as the CODM
reviews financial information on a basis consistent with that presented in the consolidated financial statements.
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Ansoft’s products are classified into two categories, high performance electronics and electromechanical (EM).
Ansoft’s CEO reviews sales by product category. The following table presents product sales by market
application as a percentage of total sales:

2005 2004 2003
High Performance EIECITOMICS ....ccocoveiviiininiiirinir et re st see et se st s 81% 79% 82%
ElectromechaniCal ..o e e s 19% 21% 18%

Profitability information by product category is not available as operating expenses and other income and
expense items are managed on a functional basis.

Export sales, principally to Asia, accounted for 57%, 57% and 56% of total product revenue in 2005, 2004 and
2003, respectively. Included in export sales to Asia were sales to Japan, which accounted for approximately
22%, 23% and 21% of total revenue in fiscal 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. No other foreign country
accounted for more than 10% of total revenue during these periods. As of April 30, 2005 and 2004, there were
net assets of $ 7.7 million and $5.1 million in Asia and $1.3 million and $1.4 million in Europe.

The Company markets its software products to customers throughout the world directly and generally does not
require collateral. However, letters of credit are obtained from certain international customers prior to shipment.
The Company performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers and maintains an allowance for potential
credit losses. The Company believes that it has adequately provided for credit losses.

10. Income Tax

Income (loss) before taxes includes domestic and foreign income as follows:

_April 30,
2005 2004 2003
DIOMIESTIC «.ovvvvveeirieervesseaeteeeeenstratesesvesssstosesstrsstrerssasessasessasessssstsssssssbessassssnss $ 12470 % 1,648 $ (4,363)
FOTEIZN .ottt ettt s et sb e st sr s e bbb e e sbeshpaneebesanae 1,130 _ 1,762 270
TOUAL .ttt e ne e e sat e eaa s er et e $ 13600 $§ 3410 3 (4.093)
The provision for income taxes consists of the following:
April 30,
2005 2004 2003
Current:
FEAEIAl. oottt ettt e s st $ 4474 § 499 § (586)
SHALE. ..ottt et b e e bbb na bR e e nesb b nre 468 192 24
FOTEIZN ..ottt s e saa s r st e s s e ssae e sba e e sabesrassaesmmesbenseeste 122 445 —
TOUAL ..ottt b r et sttt e ebs e snere 5,064 1,136 (562)
Deferred:
FEARIal.....ococoiies ettt s e (1,291) (394) €2))
AL ettt e et b e s et sk bb e e e 7 72) (162)
FOTCIZN ..ot s e s 379 184 —
TOMAL ..ot et st _(905) (282) __ (408)
Total expense (benefit) fOr INCOME LAX ......ccevevrveerircieertiieeierereeesrierene e rnesenes $ 4159 § 854 $§ (970)
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The Company’s actual income tax expense (benefit) differs from the expected income tax expense (benefit)
computed by applying the statutory federal rate to income before income taxes as a result of the following:

April 30,
2005 2004 2003
Income tax expense (benefit) at StAULOTY TALE .....ovvercervrreerieereereeirnrrcerearennne $ 4,623 $ 1,159 $ (1,392)
State income tax, net of federal benefit .........cccceviieviiiiieiiniiecc e 503 79 (92)
Research and development credit .......c..oooiveveieiicicninnicnieciceee e (1,108) 480)  (1,575)
Rate differential between U.S and foreign taxes ......cococcoeverivrerernniiicenionineene 174 30 —
Change in valuation alloWanCe .........ccceoeveirrnneniecreeenie e 197N (55) 1,843
Intangible aMOMtZALON ....c.ovviviviiiiiricimii s 31 74 77
OHET, DBttt et s aa et e r e sb s ae b e saerae b enasaseeann 133 47 169
Actual income tax expense (Denefit).........ccoivveeeevrrieerinineeniierereeeecnsesessnnes $ 4159 $§ 854 $ _ (970)

In addition to amounts applicable to income before taxes, the following income tax benefit amounts were
recorded in stockholders’ equity.

Fiscal year ending April 30,
2005 2004 2003

Tax effect of StOCK OPLON EXEICISES. .cverrirreriiteietiieriree sttt $ (4616) $ (677) $ (90)

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities are presented below:

April 30,

2008 2004
Deferred tax assets:
Net operating 108s CarryfOrward.........ocoveeerririenirnirecereornreree e e s ne e sesasasessesrssseees $ 477 3 241
Capital 10SS CAITYOVETS ..ve.uiriirieiieriie sttt ettt et es e sttt et st sa b b e b st e b seeabebene 427 395
Allowance for doubtful ACCOUNLS .......ccoiuieeeiirientereie et ettt et ene 161 343
Alternative minimum tax credit carryforward ........cccoovevevirreeiiicrerevnsccnnnas e 156 256
Research and development tax credit carryforward ..........ccoovvvecroinciinienseciicernneeccnnnenas 2,623 2,157
INTANZIDIE ASSELS ..euvvrereereeiiererteeitrt ettt sttt et st st es st ettt stas st et ta e stensasnosesessstens 3,992 4,004
FOreign tax Credit ... e ree e bene e sesiaes 191 —
Furniture and eQUIPIMENT ........ccocviiriirirce et st 30 —
Net unrealized losses on available for sale SECUIES .......cviveiciriereeeiini e 1,203 989
Total gross deferred taX ASSEIS .uovuviviriiieieriiierere ettt senie e bbb e bt s sssrens 9,260 8,385
Less valuation allOWANCE .......evvviicieinieertinieieieteieenrtrstn e sseeseeestesesenesitesienssasessnessssessseraseens (2.854) __(2,523)
INET AEfEITEA LAX BSSEES 1vviiiriiiiierreiieeiereerire sttt sereeibereresestarrsaresesessaesssessssesssessssenssessssessesrnne 6,406 5,862
Deferred tax liabilities:
Furniture and eQUIPIMENT ........covveieeerireererrrets et e steee e sraesesseeseesbesnssaessessaesessrenssasseensanseens — (361)
Total gross deferred tax Habilify .......ccoeoricieririieiiecri et e ses e e — (361)
Net AEfOITEA tAXES .....ovvueeeiriirceirie ettt e st e se e et saa ettt rsese st anssaresransestens 6,406 5.501

The net change in the total valuation allowance for the years ended April 30, 2005 and April 30, 2004 was an
increase of $331 and a decrease of $483, respectively. An increase of $528 and a decrease of $428 in the
valuation allowance was recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income relating to marketable securities
for the years ended April 30, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Management evaluates the recoverability of the
deferred tax assets and the level of the valuation allowance on a quarterly basis. In assessing the realizability of
the deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the
deferred tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the
generation of future taxable income during the periods in which those temporary differences become deductible.
Management considers the scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities, projected future taxable income, and
tax planning strategies in making this assessment.
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As of April 30, 2005, the Company had foreign operating loss carryforwards of $1,444 which are available to
offset future foreign taxable income over an indefinite period. The Company also has alternative minimum tax
credit carryforwards of $156 which are available to reduce future federal income taxes, if any, over an indefinite
period. The Company has research and development credit carryforwards of $2,623 as of April 30, 2005. These
credits will be available to reduce future federal income taxes, if any, through April 30, 2023. The Company
also has capital loss carryovers of $1,257 that are available to offset capital gains through April 30, 2007.

11. Employee Benefit Plan

The Company has a 401(k) savings and retirement plan which covers its full-time employees who have attained
the age of 21 and have completed six months of service. Eligible employees make voluntary contributions to the
plan. The Company is not required to contribute, nor has it contributed, to the 401(k) plan.

12. Commitments And Contingencies

The Company sells software licenses and services to its customers under proprietary software license
agreements. Each license agreement contains the relevant terms of the contractual arrangement with the
customer, and generally includes certain provisions for indemnifying the customer against losses, expense and
liabilities from damages that may be incurred by or awarded against the customer in the event the Company’s
software or services are found to infringe upon a patent, copyright, or other proprietary right of a third party.

To date, the Company has not had to reimburse any of its customers for any losses related to these
indemnification provisions and no material claims asserted under these indemnification provisions are
outstanding as of April 30, 2005. For several reasons, including the lack of prior indemnification claims, the
Company cannot determine the maximum amount of potential future payments, if any, related to such
indemnification provisions. '
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.

None.
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements included in this Annual Report. The financial
statements were prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America and include amounts that are based on the best estimates and judgments of management. The other
financial information contained in this Annual Report is consistent with the financial statements.

Our internal control system is designed to provide reasonable assurance conceming the reliability of the
financial data used in the preparation of Ansoft’s financial statements, as well as to safeguard Ansoft’s assets
from unauthorized use or disposition.

All internal control systems, no matter how well designed, have inherent limitations. Therefore, even those
systems determined to be effective can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement
presentation.

(b) Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting
and for performing an assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Internal
control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles.

Because of inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting cannot provide absolute assurance that
financial reporting objectives will be achieved. In addition, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to
future periods are subject to the risks that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions
and that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Management performed an assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting as of April 30, 2005 based upon the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internal Control-Integrated Framework. Based on such assessment,
management determined that the Company’s internal control over financial reporting was effective as of April
30, 2005 based on those criteria.

KPMG LLP, has issued an audit report on our assessment and on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting. The KPMG report is included in (¢) Evaluation of Changes in Internal Control
over Financial Reporting.

(c) Evaluation of Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There was no change in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the

Company’s last fiscal quarter of 2005 that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect,
the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

42




Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Ansoft Corporation:

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal
Control over Financial Reporting that Ansoft Corporation (the Company) maintained effective internal control
over financial reporting as of April 30, 2005, based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Comrmission (COSO).
Ansoft Corporation’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial
reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion cn management’s assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our
audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s
assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that Ansoft Corporation maintained effective internal control over
financial reporting as of April 30, 2003, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on criteria established in
Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSO). Also, in our opinion, Ansoft Corporation maintained, in all material respects, effective
internal control over financial reporting as of April 30, 2005, based on criteria established in Internal Control-
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
(COSO0).
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We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the consolidated balance sheets of Ansoft Corporation and subsidiaries as of April 30, 2005 and
2004, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity and comprehensive income,
and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended April 30, 2005, and our report dated May 26,
2005 expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements.

/s/ KPMG LLP

Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania
May 26, 2005
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Item 9B. Other Information

None.

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Company - The information relating to this item is provided
in the Company’s definitive proxy statement filed with the SEC in connection with its Annual Meeting of
Shareholders of the Company is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 11. Executive Compensation - The information set forth under the captions “Employment Contracts and
Change of Control Agreements” and “Executive Compensation” in the Company’s definitive proxy statement
filed with the SEC in connection with its Annual Meeting of Shareholders of the Company is incorporated
herein by reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners, Management and Related Stockholder
Matters - In addition to the information set forth under the caption “Equity Compensation Plans” beginning at

page 11 in Part II of this Report, information relating to this item is provided in the Company’s definitive proxy
statement filed with the SEC in connection with its Annual Meeting of Shareholders of the Company is
incorporated herein by reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Party Transactions - Information relating to this item is
provided in the Company’s definitive proxy statement filed with the SEC in connection with its Annual Meeting
of Shareholders of the Company is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 14. Principle Accounting Fees and Service - Information relating to this item is provided in the
Company’s definitive proxy statement filed with the SEC in connection with its Annual Meeting of
Shareholders of the Company is incorporated herein by reference.
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PART IV

Ttem 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

(a) Financial statements. The following consolidated financial statements are filed as part of this Annual Report
on Form 10-K.

Page

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.......cooveiiienicmicninceisereieeeseeee e 25
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of April 30, 2005 and 2004 .........c.ooviiiiiceinneeeceeereee et 26
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended April 30, 2005, 2004 and 2003 ....................... 27
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity and Comprehensive Income for the years ended April

30, 2005, 2004 aNd 2003 ..o ettt et es e es e se bt be b et n et et etnten 28
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended April 30, 2005, 2004 and 2003...........cccevuene 29
Notes to Consolidated Financial StAIBMENLS .....o.ovvveiviiiiiiricen et errn et eerasssesa s e sas s 30

(b) Exhibits. The exhibits filed or incorporated by reference as a part of this report are listed in the Index to
Exhibits which appears on the following page and are incorporated by reference.

(c) Schedules.

Schedule II—Valuation and Qualifying Accounts and Reserves for each of the years in the three-year period
ended April 30, 2005.

Financial statement schedules not listed above have been omitted because they are inapplicable, are not
required under applicable provisions of Regulation S-X, or the information that would otherwise be
included in such schedules is contained in the registrant’s financial statements or accompanying notes.

Ansoft Corporation
Schedule II-Valuation and Qualifying Accounts and Reserves
For the three years ended April 30, 2005
(In thousands)

Additions
Balance as of {Deductions) Balance as of
the Beginning Charged to Costs the End of
of the Period and Expenses Deductions the Period
Year ended April 30, 2005 Allowance for
doubtful ACCOUNTS .....cvvveiiieriiiriiirieeereeere e 903 (197) (281) 425
Year ended April 30, 2004 Allowance for
doubtful aCCOUNLS......ccovvrvevereererieere e eer s 818 250 (165) 903
Year ended April 30, 2003 Allowance for
doubtful acCOUNtS ....ocvvvviieicive e, 621 373 (176) 818
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EXHIBIT INDEX

The Exhibits listed below are filed or incorporated by reference as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Exhibit
Number Description
3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Company (incorporated by reference from
Registration Statement No. 333-40189)
3.2  Certificate of Amendment to the Company's Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation
(incorporated by reference from Registration Statement No. 333-40189)
33  Bylaws of the Company (incorporated by reference from Registration Statement No. 333-1398)
10.1 1988 Stock Option Plan of the Company (incorporated by reference from Registration Statement No.
333-1398)%*
10.2 1995 Stock Option Plan of the Company (incorporated by reference from Registration Statement No.
333-1398)%*
10.3  Zoltan Cendes Stock Option Agreement, dated April 30, 1995 (incorporated by reference from
Registration Statement No. 333-1398)
104  Loan Agreement by and between Ansoft Corporation and PNC Bank, National Association dated
October 21, 2004 (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 99.1 to Form 8-K filed October 21, 2004)
10.5 Jacob K. White Stock Option Agreement dated February 1, 1996, as amended (incorporated by
reference from Registration Statement No. 333-40189)
10.6  John N. Whelihan Stock Option Agreement dated February 1, 1996, as amended (incorporated by
reference from Registration Statement No. 333-40189)
10.7  Agilent HFSS™ Technology and License Transfer Agreement dated May 1, 2001 (incorporated by
reference from Exhibit 10.12 of Form 10-K filed July 25, 2003)
14 Code of Business Conduct-this code of ethics may be accessed at the Company's website:
www.ansoft.com
21.1 Subsidiaries of the registrant (incorporated by reference from the Company's Annual Report on Form
10-K for the fiscal year ended April 30, 1997)
31.1  Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith)
31.2  Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith)
32.1  Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith)

** Incentive or stock compensation plan of the Company
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused
this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized on June 2, 2005.

ANSOFT CORPORATION

By /sf Nicholas Csendes

Nicholas Csendes
President

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities indicated on June 2, 2005.

Signature Title
/s/ Nicholas Csendes Director, President and Chief Executive Officer
Nicholas Csendes (Principal Executive Officer)
/s/ Thomas A.N. Miller Chief Financial Officer
Thomas A.N. Miller (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
/s/ Zoltan J. Cendes Director, Chief Technology Officer
Zoltan J. Cendes and Chairman of the Board of Directors
/s/ Peter Robbins Director
Peter Robbins
/s/ Paul Quast Director
Paul Quast
/s/ John N. Whelihan Director

John N. Whelihan
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EXHIBIT 31.1
Certifications

Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I, Nicholas Csendes, certify that:
1. T have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of Ansoft Corporation, the registrant;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements
were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the
registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and
have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period
in which this report is being prepared;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the
period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

¢) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of
the annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of
directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control of
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process,
summarize and report financial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant
role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: June 2, 2005

By: /s/ Nicholas Csendes

Nicholas Csendes
President and Chief Executive Officer




EXHIBIT 31.2

Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
I, Thomas A.N. Miller, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of Ansoft Corporation, the registrant;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements
were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the
registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and
have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period
in which this report is being prepared;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the
period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

c) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of
the annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of

directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control of
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process,
summarize and report financial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant
role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: June 2, 2005

By: /s/ Thomas A.N. Miller

Thomas A.N. Miller
Chief Financial Officer




EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Ansoft Corporation (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the year ended
April 30, 2005 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report™), I,
Nicholas Csendes, President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and
results of operations of the Company.

Date: June 2, 2005

By: /s/ Nicholas Csendes

Nicholas Csendes
President and Chief Executive Officer

Date: June 2, 2005

By: /s/ Thomas A.N. Miller

Thomas A.N. Miller
Chief Financial Officer

This certification is made solely for purposes of 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, subject to the knowledge standard
contained therein, and not for any other purpose.
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